
 Active Minds Changing Lives  Page 1 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 
 
THURSDAY, December 11, 2014 
Location: OM 340 
Time:  1:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

1:00 pm 
 
 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY BE HELD TO DISCUSS PERSONNEL, REAL ESTATE AND 
LEGAL ISSUES AS AUTHORIZED IN RCW 42.30.110. 
1:00 – 3:00 
 
 
BREAK 3:00 – 3:15 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
3:15 

 Board of Trustees Meeting, October 9, 10 2014 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

4. CONSENT ITEMS 
3:15 – 3:20 

 Approval of Fall Quarter Degrees 
 
 

5. REFINANCING OF HOUSING & DINING SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
3:20 – 3:25  Presentation: Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
     Eileen Coughlin, Senior VP & VP for Enrollment and Student Services 
     Brian Sullivan, Assistant VP for Business and Financial Affairs 
3:25 – 3:30 
 
 
BREAK 3:30 - 3:45 (for incoming participants to come in and get settled without disturbing the meeting) 
 
 

6. GLOBALLY ENGAGED UNIVERSITY, JOINT SESSION WITH FOUNDATION BOARD  
3:45 – 5:15  Presentation: Brent Carbajal, Provost & Vice President for Academic Affairs 
     Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement 



 

1. CALL TO ORDER 



 

 
2.   EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Executive Session may be held to discuss personnel, real 

estate, and legal issues as authorized in RCW 42.30.110. 



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 

 
TO:  Members of the Board of Trustees  
 
FROM: President Bruce Shepard 
 
DATE:  Thursday, December 11, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes 
 
PURPOSE: Action Items 
 
 
 
Purpose of Submittal: 
 
Approval of the Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes. 
 
  
Proposed Motion: 
 

MOVED, that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University, upon the 
recommendation of the president, approve the following minutes: 

 
 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting, October 9 & 10, 2014. 

 
Supporting Information:   
 
Minutes of October 9 &10, 2014 
 



 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 9, 2014 meeting 

 

1 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, October 9, 2014 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Karen Lee called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 
University to order at 3:05 p.m., Thursday, October 9, 2014 in the Board of Trustees Conference 
Room, Old Main 340, at Western Washington University in Bellingham, Washington.   
 
Board of Trustees 
 Karen Lee, Chair 
 Sue Sharpe, Vice Chair 
 Dick Thompson, Secretary 
 Betti Fujikado 
 Chase Franklin 
 Carly Roberts 
 Ralph Munro 
 Earl Overstreet 
 
Western Washington University 
 Bruce Shepard, President  
 Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs  
 Eileen Coughlin, Senior VP, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services 
 Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
 Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement 
 Steve Swan, Vice President for University Relations and Community Development 
 Spencer Anthony-Cahill, Faculty Senate President 
 Annika Wolters, Associated Students President  
 Lisa Wochos, Assistant Attorney General 
 Sherry Burkey, Associate Vice President for University Relations and Community Development 
 Paul Cocke, Director, University Communications 
 Barbara Sandoval, Assistant to the President and Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
 Elissa Hicks, Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
 
 
2. WATERFRONT DEVELOPMENT 
 
Steve Swan, Vice President, University Relations and Community Development introduced Rob Fix, 
Executive Director, Port of Bellingham.  Fix proceeded to give a presentation on the current status of 
the Waterfront Development Project.  He said that the current plan for the waterfront area is a 
vibrant mix of uses including parks and trails, a new downtown marina and an extension campus 
area for Western.  The goals of revitalizing the first 10.8 acres of the waterfront include restoring the 
health of the land and water in the area, rebuilding the underutilized waterfront economy and 
improving public access to the waterfront.  There will be five distinct development phases throughout 
the project.   



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 9, 2014 meeting 

 

2 

Fix described some of the challenges of the project which include the failing industrial shorelines and 
infrastructure, site environmental contamination and cleanup, the endangered species in the area, 
and coordinating all of the local, state and federal regulatory permits from fourteen different 
stakeholders. 
 
Fix said the next steps that the Port is currently working on include the continuation of the 
environmental cleanups with the help of the State Department of Ecology, the installation of the 
phase 1 roads and park areas and the selling and leasing of property for the first development 
areas.   
 
Trustees had questions about the Port’s ongoing commitments from the former tenants for cleanup 
and where the money from the cleanup efforts would come from.  Fix said that a mix of insurance 
money from former tenants and grants from the State Department of Ecology would offset the 
expense.  Trustees also had questions about the planning process, who had been involved and 
whether the current plan was different from the original plan for both the project as a whole and for 
Western’s involvement.  Fix said that the port has been working with numerous community 
stakeholders over the life of the project and that input and changes are still being sought and made 
to ensure a positive experience for the community.  Provost Carbajal also mentioned that the plans 
for Western’s involvement, while they have evolved, are still close to the original discussions.  
President Shepard added that leaving the waterfront option open for Western’s future will be an 
enormous benefit to campus.   

 
 

3. PUBLIC RECORDS TRAINING 
 
Kerena Higgins, Assistant Attorney General provided background on the Open Government 
Trainings Act. Higgins said that Board members received Open Public Meetings Act training from 
Assistant Attorney General Wochos at the August 2014 Board of Trustees meeting. She said the 
new laws represent an effort by the legislature to support the rights of citizens to participate in the 
democratic process of open public government and limit violations by providing routine training and 
broadening awareness.  As part of the initiative Assistant Attorney General Higgins presented 
training materials regarding the Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW. Because of time 
limitations Tony Kurtz, University Records Manager, was unable to present information on record 
management at the university.  University staff will reschedule a time for Mr. Kurtz to present.  
 
Trustees asked how this act related to their duties as trustees verses staff of the University.  Higgins 
said that the same rules apply to them when they are doing the business of the University.  
 

 
4. EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY BE HELD TO DISCUSS PERSONNEL, REAL ESTATE AND 

LEGAL ISSUES AS AUTHORIZED IN RCW 42.30.110. 
 
At 4:37 p.m. Chair Lee announced that the Board would convene in Executive Session for 
approximately twenty five minutes to discuss a legal controversy with counsel as authorized in RCW 
42.30.110 (1)(i). 
 
The Board returned to open meeting at 5:00 p.m. with no action to report. 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

1 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MEETING MINUTES 
FRIDAY, October 10, 2014 

 
 

Breakfast with the 2014 President’s Exceptional Effort Award Winners in the Solarium 
 
The Trustees, President Shepard and Vice Presidents enjoyed a breakfast with the 2014 President’s 
Exceptional Effort Award Recipients. 

 Eugene (Gene) Meyers, Jr, Outstanding Faculty Leadership Award  
 Korry Harvey, Diversity Achievement Award  
 Juliet Holzknecht, Outstanding Classified Staff Award  
 Renee Collins, Professional Staff Organization Award  
 Maria Timmons Flores, Carl H. Simpson Bridging Award  
 Jeff Carroll, Philip E. Sharpe Jr., Community Engagement Award  
 Salish Sea Ecosystem Conference Team, Team Recognition Award  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER, APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Chair Lee called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 
University to order at 8:45 a.m., Friday, October 10, 2014 in the Board of Trustees Conference 
Room, Old Main 340, at Western Washington University in Bellingham, Washington. 
 
Board of Trustees 
 Karen Lee, Chair 
 Sue Sharpe, Vice Chair 
 Dick Thompson, Secretary 
 Betti Fujikado 
 Carly Roberts 
 Ralph Munro 
 Earl Overstreet 
 
Western Washington University 
 Bruce Shepard, President  
 Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs  
 Eileen Coughlin, Senior VP, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services 
 Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
 Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement 
 Steve Swan, Vice President for University Relations and Community Development 
 Spencer Anthony-Cahill, Faculty Senate President 
 Annika Wolters, Associated Students President  
 Lisa Wochos, Assistant Attorney General 
 Sherry Burkey, Associate Vice President for University Relations and Community Development 
 Paul Cocke, Director, University Communications 
 Barbara Sandoval, Assistant to the President and Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
 Elissa Hicks, Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

2 

 
There were no changes to the draft minutes as distributed. 
 
MOTION 10-01-2014:  Trustee Munro moved that the Board of Trustees of Western 

Washington University, upon the recommendation of the President, 
approve the following minutes:  

 
 Board of Trustees Meeting, August 21, 2014 
 Board of Trustees Special Meeting, August 22, 2014 

 
The motion carried. 
 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

As per Amended RCW 28B.35.110, time was provided for public comment at the October 10, 2014 
regular meeting of the Board of Trustees. There were no requests for public comment. 

 
 
3. RECOGNITIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

 Sherry Burkey, Associate Vice President, University Relations and Community 
Development 

President Shepard said a few words about Sherry Burkey and introduced Steve Swan, Vice 
President, University Relations and Community Development who praised Burkey’s work at 
Western.  Chair Lee invited Trustee Thompson to read Resolution 2014-07, Recognizing the Service 
of Sherry Burkey. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-07 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
RECOGNIZING THE SERVICE OF  

 
Sherry Burkey 

 
WHEREAS, in 2005, SHERRY BURKEY was appointed by President Karen W. Morse as the 
Associate Vice President for External Affairs and Director of Government Relations at Western 
Washington University; and 
 
WHEREAS, SHERRY BURKEY brought to her appointment as Associate Vice President for 
External Affairs and the Director of Government Relations experience as Director of External Affairs 
at the University of Washington School of Medicine, Associate Vice President for University 
Relations and Director of Government Relations, as well as Associate and Assistant Director of 
Government Relations at the University of Washington; and 
 
WHEREAS, SHERRY BURKEY served as a legislative assistant to United States Senator Henry M. 
(Scoop) Jackson, and as a legislative aide on the U.S. Senate Committee on Labor and Human 
Services Subcommittee on Health which was chaired by Senator Ted Kennedy; and 
 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

3 

WHEREAS, SHERRY BURKEY received her undergraduate degree from the University of 
Washington; and 
 
WHEREAS, under SHERRY BURKEY’s exceptional leadership, Western Washington University 
has experienced a most successful collaboration with the Washington State Legislature, one that 
has left her footprint of success on new or enhanced physical facilities and academic programs, 
funding for faculty and staff positions and salaries, and for overall student success; and 
  
WHEREAS, under SHERRY BURKEY’s guidance, Western secured more than $248 million for 27 
capital projects, including the new state-of-the-art Academic Instruction Center, the remodeling of 
Miller Hall and Fraser Hall, and the planning and design funding for the renovation of the Carver 
Academic Facility; and received funding for numerous programs, including the Behavioral 
Neuroscience Program, the Advanced Materials Science and Engineering Center, the Institute for 
Energy Studies, the conversion of the Engineering Technology Program to Engineering, the growth 
of the Computer Science Program; and the securing of state-wide funding that enabled a zero 
percent tuition increase for students; and    
 
WHEREAS, SHERRY BURKEY has been selected to receive the Marvin D. “Swede” Johnson 
Award for achievement in government relations from the Council for the Advancement and Support 
of Education (CASE), the first person from the Pacific Northwest to be recognized in the 20 year 
history of the award; and  
 
WHEREAS, SHERRY BURKEY will be retiring from Western to pursue new adventures in the next 
chapter of her life; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 
University offers thanks and commendation to SHERRY BURKEY on her many achievements and 
exemplary service as Associate Vice President for University Relations and Community 
Development and Director of Government Relations. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University at its 
regular meeting on October 10, 2014. 
 
MOTION 10-02-2014:  Trustee Thompson moved that the Board of Trustees of Western 

Washington University, approve Resolution 2014-07, Recognizing the 
Service of Sherry Burkey. 

 
The motion carried. 
 

 Becca Kenna-Schenk, Government Relations Director 
 
Vice President Swan introduced Becca Kenna-Schenk, Government Relations Director.  Swan said that 
Kenna-Schenk was hired as the Director of Government Relations at Western effective September 15, 
2014, and will succeed Sherry Burkey, who is retiring.  Kenna-Schenk, was most recently director of 
Government Relations for the Washington Student Achievement Council.  Kenna-Schenk has a 
bachelor’s degree from Oberlin College in Oberlin, Ohio and a master’s of Public Administration from 
The Evergreen State College.  
 

 Matt Babick, Director, Office of the Internal Auditor 
 
President Shepard introduced Matt Babick, Director, Office of the Internal Auditor.  President Shepard 
said Babick was hired as Director of Internal Audit at Western following a national search. He succeeds 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

4 

former Internal Audit Director Kim Herrenkohl, who left Western to take a position as chief deputy auditor 
for San Juan County. Babick’s 25 years of experience includes time as a university auditor for California 
State University, Fresno; director of internal audit for El Paso (Texas) Community College and 
management auditor for the California State University Board of Trustees, Long Beach.  Babick has a 
bachelor’s degree in Public Administration from San Diego State University and a master’s in Public 
Administration from the University of Southern California.  
 
 
4. BOARD CHAIR 
 
Chair Lee welcomed Trustee Overstreet and invited Trustee Fujikado to read Resolution 2014-08, 
Welcoming Trustee Earl Overstreet. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 

WELCOMING TRUSTEE  

Earl Overstreet 
 

WHEREAS, on October 1, 2014, Governor Jay Inslee appointed EARL OVERSTREET of 
Greenbank, Washington, to serve a term on the Western Washington University Board of Trustees 
through September 30, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, EARL OVERSTREET brings to his appointment as a trustee over 40 years of 
professional experience in the business, information technology and services industry communities, 
currently as the founding chief executive for General Microsystems Incorporated (GMI), and 
previously at Wyle Labs Electronic Marketing Group and General Electric; and 

 
WHEREAS, EARL OVERSTREET has proven his exceptional business leadership by General 
Microsystems Incorporated being awarded the 2008 William D. Bradford Minority Business of the 
Year Award and the 2006 Distinguished Business Achievement Award from the University of 
Washington Foster School of Business, as well as the 2007, 2008 and 2014 Class III Supplier of the 
Year Award from the Northwest Minority Supplier Development Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, EARL OVERSTREET has shown commitment to serve his community by serving as 
Chair of the Board of Directors for the Bellevue Chamber of Commerce, as a member of the Central 
Washington University College of Business Advisory Board, the State of Washington Office of 
Minority and Women’s Business Enterprise’s Advisory Committee, the South King County STEM 
Advisory Committee and on the Bellevue College Presidential Search Advisory Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, EARL OVERSTREET received his bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from 
Case Institute of Technology and his Masters of Business Administration from Case Western 
Reserve University in Cleveland, Ohio; and 
 
WHEREAS, EARL OVERSTREET has declared his commitment to serve as a member of the Western 
Washington University Board of Trustees; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 
University officially extends a warm welcome to EARL OVERSTREET as he begins his term on the 
Board. 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

5 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University at its 
regular meeting on October 10, 2014. 
 
MOTION 10-03-2014:  Trustee Fujikado moved that the Board of Trustees of Western 

Washington University, approve Resolution 2014-08, Welcoming 
Trustee Earl Overstreet. 

 
The motion carried. 
 
Chair Lee said that former Trustee Peggy Zoro could not make it to the meeting and that the Board 
would recognize her at a later date.  She then gave a brief summary of the trustee’s recent 
evaluation of President Shepard.  Lee said that she appreciated all who participated and provided 
information for President Shepard’s evaluation.  She also appreciated the thoughtful input that 
people provided to the Trustees on ways to improve the Board and continue moving the University 
forward.  
 
 
5. UNIVERSITY PRESIDENT 
 
President Shepard said he recently attended a Council of President’s (COP) Retreat with other state 
institution’s leadership from Washington State. He said that the COP group met with leadership from 
the Governor’s Office, the Senate and the House and discussed the need for state support for higher 
education.  The state officers expressed knowledge of the importance of state support and talked 
about the revenue issues facing the state in the next legislative session.  Trustees expressed 
support for the COP’s focus on statewide student success.   
 
 
6. ASSOCIATED STUDENTS 

 
Annika Wolters, Associated Student President reported that the AS Board efforts for voter 
registration at the beginning of the quarter were a success.  Western registered more students to 
vote than any other Washington State campus and had the record for most one day registrations.  
Wolters said that the AS Board is working to get the late night bus shuttle to extend their hours of 
operation on the 21st Street corridor to allow students a safe way home in the dark winter months.  
She said the Board is working on a student activity calendar, more gender neutral bathroom options, 
and a different location for the ethnic student center. Wolters said that the AS Board considers the 
recent conversation on divestment with the Western Foundation Board a success because it got the 
issue discussed on campus and raised awareness adding that the Board is turning their focus to 
ways that the campus can make further progress on sustainability.   
 
 
Chair Lee announced a break at 9:39 am. The Board returned and reconvened the meeting 
at 9:55 am. 
 
 
7. FALL OPENING 
 
Eileen Coughlin, Sr. Vice President & VP for Enrollment & Student Services reported to the Trustees 
on the 2014 fall enrollment numbers and breakdown at Western.  Coughlin said that Western had an 
official total enrollment of 15,060 students, and welcomed just under 2,786 freshmen to the campus. 
She said that the enrolled freshmen are more diverse and an increased number are first generation 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

6 

students which reflects current Washington High School graduates demographics. Coughlin said 
many variables are considered when making enrollment goals, and Western had come within .02% 
of the total enrollment goal number.  Admissions also noted that enrollment is up this year for Native 
American students which more accurately reflects the State demographics.  Coughlin also said that 
the first round of students who participated in the Compass 2 Campus program are within a couple 
of years of high school graduation and should be seeing numbers from those graduates soon.  She 
noted that the overall applicant pool for African American students was down in the total number of 
applicants, but they saw an increase in the quality of the candidates.  Overall, Coughlin said she is 
pleased with the student mix on campus this year.  
 
Trustees had questions about recruiting efforts and the most effective ways to showcase Western to 
prospective students.  Coughlin said that there are three main recruiting efforts that prove to be the 
most productive, an in person campus visit, generous financial aid packages, and a website that is 
easy to navigate and peruse.  Trustees asked about affordability and how much of a factor it is for 
students on their final choice for schools.  Coughlin said that her division is responding to need 
based financing as best they can for applicants, but that for most students, especially first generation 
students, finances are the final decision point for all most everyone.  AS President Wolters 
commented on the diversity statics and said that Western should define what diversity is to help 
further the goals, not just say it is people of color.   
 
 
8. ASHOKA UPDATE 
 
Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs introduced the agenda item and 
invited Brian Burton, Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs and Danica Kilander, Western 
Change Leader to present.  Burton said that on October 1st Western Washington University was 
selected to join the Ashoka U Changemaker Campus consortium, which currently stretches across 
29 campuses in five countries.  Western is the first public comprehensive university to be selected 
for the consortium.  Burton said that to receive the Changemaker Campus designation, institutions 
typically spend over a year navigating a very rigorous selection process. Potential candidates are 
evaluated and coached on a wide range of criteria that include the strength of the team behind social 
innovation initiatives, the availability and accessibility of a variety of social innovation opportunities 
for students, genuine senior leadership support, and commitment to advancing the field.  Burton 
added that Ashoka U selection panelists noted that Western’s tagline of “Active Minds Changing 
Lives” is clearly embodied and exemplified in the enthusiastic response from students on campus, 
as well as faculty and staff, and that the campus lives what we believe. The panelist also noted that 
it is clear that Western is dedicated to creating a community that cares about giving back to their 
state, nation and world in new and creative ways.  
 
Burton said that Ashoka U offers the Changemaker Campus designation to leading institutions in 
social innovation education. These institutions share the vision for higher education to become the 
next global driver of social change by transforming the educational experience into a world-changing 
experience. The purpose of the Changemaker Campus designation is to recognize colleges and 
universities that have embedded social innovation as a core value and showcase the ways in which 
they have built supportive environments for changemaking across the entire institution – from 
admissions to curriculum, career services, and community and alumni engagement.  
 
Trustees were pleased to hear about Western’s participation in the program and asked what this 
means as far as Western’s commitment in the future.  Burton said that there is no commitment other 
than being part of the group and continuing to participate in the program.   
 
 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

7 

 
 
9. EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM UPDATE 
 
Rich Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs, Vice President Steve Swan, 
Darin Rasmussen, Chief of Police / Director of Public Safety, Sue Sullivan, Director, Environmental 
Health and Safety, and Paul Cocke, Director, Office of University Communications introduced 
themselves and began the presentation regarding the emergency communications systems on 
campus. Van Den Hul said that the University deploys the Western Alert system which uses a 
number of notification elements – including emergency building enunciation, text, email, social 
media and web messages – to provide the campus community with information when an emergency 
or threat occurs.  He said that the objective of the Western Alert System is to provide clear, concise 
emergency messages to the campus as quickly as possible using prioritized, identified 
communication channels. 
 
Van Den Hul said that the Emergency Notification Planning Group was recently charged to develop 
a systematic strategy and approach to improve Western’s emergency notification systems and has 
determined that campus readiness and reaction can be enhanced with incorporation of the latest 
upgrades in technology and streamlining of communications protocols.   
 
Trustees asked what constitutes an on campus verses off campus emergency, and if off campus 
incidents will be noticed to campus the same as on campus.  They also asked what system Seattle 
Pacific University used during their campus emergency last spring and how Western’s system 
compares.  Van Den Hul said that was addressed by Western’s planning group and that they are 
looking at similar improvements to our system.  Trustees commented that this is a very important 
topic to address before it is needed and would like to hear more specifics in the near future.   
 
 
10. FACULTY SENATE 
 
Spencer Anthony-Cahill, Faculty Senate President thanked the Board for accommodating his 
request for a later presentation time to allow him to administer a celebration of knowledge 
opportunity, a test, in his morning class.  Anthony-Cahill outlined the following top priorities from the 
Faculty Senate Executive Committee for the upcoming year: 
 
1) Establish significant faculty involvement on a strategic enrollment planning committee. 
 
2) On issues related to student retention: 
    a) Work with the AS to identify and implement effective strategies for improving classroom climate 

at WWU. 
    b) Provide a Senate recommendation on continuation of the Student Success Collaborative. 
    c) Determine what would be needed to increase faculty engagement in advising of students. 
 
3) Ensure that the Senate Extended Education Committee has a clear charge, and establishes a 

collegial and productive working relationship with Extended Education. 
 
4) Resume faculty reviews of senior administrators. 
 
5) Work with the Equal Opportunity Office (EOO) to establish "informal resolution" procedures that 

are clear, meet the objectives of EOO, and are supported by the faculty. 
 
6) Respond to the Western Study of General Education report once is has been submitted. 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

8 

  
Anthony-Cahill said that the Senate is working with the AS Board to address issues raised regarding 
classroom climate.  He also talked about the recent study by Raine Dozier, Ph.D. for The President’s 
Taskforce on Equity, Inclusion, & Diversity, and how that study found that faculty of color are doing 
an inordinate amount of advising for students of color, which will only increase as the University’s 
student population continues to diversify.  Anthony-Cahill said that the Senate is hoping to address 
the issue and make sure that advising and engagement with all of our students is something that all 
faculty will be participating in.  He also said that the Senate formed a new committee, the Senate 
Extended Education Committee (SEEC), which he sees as ensuring a way to engage with Extended 
Education in a collegial way and work toward effective solutions for affordable access to quality.  
The Senate is also working with the Provost Office for a way to provide input to senior academic 
administrator’s yearly reviews rather than the Senate’s individual reviews.  

 
 

11. CAMPAIGN UPDATE 
 
Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement reported that as of September 30th 
the campaign was at $42.87 million. Bowers gave an update of the official campus launch activities 
for the campaign in Bellingham and Seattle.  Bowers also described the recent dedication of 
Harrington Field and gave a short stewardship story from the event.   

 
 

12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Dick Thompson, Chair, Board Audit Committee welcomed newly hired Director of Internal Audit Matt 
Babick.  Thompson said that he and Babick have discussed the difference between consulting and 
consultation work as an auditor verses a traditional audit and the benefits associated with that 
approach.  He said that he is looking forward to receiving his first Audit.  Thompson gave a brief 
summary of the committee’s discussion from the previous day’s meeting, including the entrance 
conference with the State Auditor’s office and the committee self-assessment process.  
 
 
13. COMMITTEE ON TRUSTEES REPORT 
 
Sue Sharpe, Chair, Board Committee on Trustees welcomed Trustee Overstreet.  Sharpe reported 
that the committee will continue to gather feedback on the new trustee orientation process and ways 
to improve.   

 
 

14. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

a. Academic Affairs Report  
Provost Carbajal provided a written report with an update on the status of Western’s accreditation 
process.  Western received notice on July 28, 2014, that its spring, 2014, Resources and Capacity 
Report was accepted by the Board of Commissioners of the Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). This acceptance extends Western’s good standing with NWCCU until its 
Spring, 2017, comprehensive evaluation, which is now called the Year-Seven Mission Fulfillment 
and Sustainability Self-Evaluation Report. 

 
 
 



DRAFT MINUTES for Approval 
October 10, 2014 meeting 

 

9 

 
b. Admissions and Enrollment Report 
Vice President Coughlin provided a written report regarding the university’s general enrollment and 
admissions. 

 
 

c. Capital Program Report 
Vice President Van Den Hul provided a written report on the university’s capital projects. 

 
 

d. University Advancement Report 
Vice President Bowers provided a written report on the university’s Alumni Relations and Western 
Foundation activities. 

 
 

e. University Relations and Community Development Report 
Vice President Swan provided a written report documenting recent activities of University Relations 
and Community Development. Trustees expressed interest in discussing the upcoming 2015 
Legislative Session with staff over the next month or so. 

 
 

f. WWU Annual Report 
A copy of Western’s Annual Report was provided to the Trustees. Trustees said that the Annual 
Report is a great way to look back at the many nationally recognized accomplishments of students, 
faculty and staff throughout the past year and to celebrate their good work. 

 
 

g. Office of the Internal Auditor Annual Report 
Matt Babick, WWU Director of Internal Audit provided the Board with the annual overview of 2013-
2014 operations of the Office of the Internal Auditor. The report included descriptions of internal 
audit services, results of audit and investigative activities, goals for the upcoming academic year. 
 
 
15. DATE FOR NEXT REGULAR MEETING:    December 11, 12 2014 
 
 
16. The meeting adjourned at 11:45 a.m. 

 



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 

 
TO:  Members of the Board of Trustees  
 
FROM: President Bruce Shepard 
 
DATE:  Thursday, December 11, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: Consent Item 
 
PURPOSE: Action Items 
 

 
 
Purpose of Submittal: 
 
Approval of the university recommendations provided on the consent item agenda. 
 
  
Proposed Motion(s): 
 
  MOVED, that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University, on 

recommendation of the faculty and subject to the completion of any unmet requirements, 
approves awarding undergraduate and graduate degrees to the candidates listed in the 
files of the Registrar and Graduate Dean, for Fall Quarter 2014, effective December 13, 
2014. 

 
 
Supporting Information:   
 
Lists on file with the Registrar and Graduate Dean. 
 
 
 
 
Students  December 2014  Comparison: December 2013 
Undergraduates   688      594    
Masters     44      41       



 
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Members of the Board of Trustees  
 
FROM: President Bruce Shepard by: 

Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
Eileen Coughlin, Sr. Vice President / Vice President for Enrollment and 

Student Services 
 
DATE:  December 11, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2014-09 Authorizing the Refinancing of the Housing and 

Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 and the Housing 
and Dining System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006  

 
PURPOSE: Action Item 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose of Submittal: 

Authorize the sale of Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 to 
refinance Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (the “2005 
Bonds”) and the Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 (the “2006 Bonds”). 
 
Supporting Information:   

The issuance and sale of Housing and Dining Revenue Refunding Bonds requires the approval 
of the Board of Trustees. A resolution is proposed for the sale of bonds, including delegation of 
authority to the President or Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs to determine the 
method, timing and details of the bond sale. Currently the market conditions are such that 
refunding of the 2005 Bonds and the 2006 Bonds could result in cost savings of approximately 
$165,000 per year.   
 
Proposed Motion: 

MOVED that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University, upon the 
recommendation of the President, adopt Resolution No. 2014-09 (attached) authorizing the 
issuance of Housing and Dining Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 including delegation of 
authority as outlined in the Bond Resolution. The Bond Resolution includes refunding of certain 
bonds.  
 
Resolution No. 2014-09 will authorize the President or Vice President for Business and 
Financial Affairs to sign the necessary documents for the execution and delivery of the bonds 
and make other determinations relative to the bond refinancing, including the method of sale, as 
described in the Bond Resolution and summarized in the attachment. 
 
Supporting Information (Attached): 

 Summary of Financing Terms 
 Resolution No. 2014-09 Housing and Dining Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 Bond  



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
Board of Trustees 
December 11, 2014 

 

HOUSING AND DINING SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09 

Summary of Financing Terms 
 
 
 
Overview 
 
 It is proposed that bonds be issued to refinance the Housing and Dining System 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (the “2005 Bonds”) and the Housing and Dining 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 (the “2006 Bonds”), for the purpose of locking in 
lower interest rates and debt service savings, and to pay costs of issuance of the bonds.   

 
Bonds to be Refunded 

 
Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 

Original Par $12,580,000 
Outstanding par 9,685.000 
Callable Par 9,040,000 
Call Date 6/1/2015 
Interest  4.00% - 4.50% 
Final Maturity 6/1/2026 
NPV Savings % 11.01% 

 
 

Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 

Original Par $9,620,000 
Outstanding par 6,690,000 
Callable Par 6,250,000 
Call Date 4/1/2015 
Interest  4.00% 
Final Maturity 4/1/2026 
NPV Savings % 9.28% 

 
 

Bond Resolution With approval of the Bond Resolution, authority to determine the 
details of the bonds and bond sale will be delegated to the President 
or Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs.  Delegated 
actions include the following: 

 
 Establish the method of sale (competitive or negotiated); 
 Determine whether a debt service reserve fund is required,  
 and in what amount; 
 Approve final interest rates;  



 Approve maturity dates and principal maturing each year; 
 Approve aggregate principal amount of bonds; and 
 Approve redemption rights. 
 

o Subject to: 
 Minimum net present value (NPV) savings 

threshold of 5% 
 Maximum average interest rate of 3% 

 
  Delegated authority will expire on December 1, 2015. 
 
Security for Bonds: A lien on the revenue of the Housing and Dining System, and related 

revenue.   
 
Size of Bond Issue: Up to $16,465,000. The final size will be based on the amount 

required to prepay the 2005 Bonds, the 2006 Bonds, and pay all costs 
of issuance. 

 
Term of Bonds: Final maturity is April 1, 2026, consistent with the 2006 Bonds (2005 

Bonds final maturity:  June 1, 2026). 
 
Interest Rates: The savings estimates are based on a TIC of 2.3% to 2.5%. The 

average interest rate on the refunded bonds is 4.21%. 
 
Minimum Savings 
Target: The Bond Resolution establishes the NPV aggregate savings (after 

payment of all costs of issuance) with respect to all Refunded Bonds 
to be at least equal to five percent (5.0%) of the principal amount of 
the Refunded Bonds.  
 Current market estimates result in NPV savings in excess of 

10% which would produce estimated average annual savings of 
$165,000.   

 
 
Current Refunding Evaluations of 2005 Bonds and 2006 Bonds 

 

Analysis 

Average 
Annual 
Savings 

True 
Interest 

Cost NPV Savings 

NPV 
savings as 
% of Par 

Negative 
Arbitrage 

Current Market -25 bps $188,000 2.05% $1,825,275 11.94% $52,371 

Current Market Rates  165,000 2.30%   1,575,563 10.30%  59,465 

Current Market +25 bps   135,000 2.55%   1,330,165   8.67%  66,181 
 
 
Proposed Sale Date: The bonds are expected to be sold between February and March 2015, 

and timing will be determined based upon market conditions. 
 
Financial Advisor: Public Financial Management Inc. (Susan Musselman) 
 
Bond Counsel: K&L Gates (Cynthia Weed) 



 

SERIES RESOLUTION 
 
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF WESTERN 
WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY; AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE AND SALE OF HOUSING AND DINING SYSTEM 
REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS OF THE UNIVERSITY IN 
THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $16,465,000 
IN ONE OR MORE SERIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REFUNDING CERTAIN OUTSTANDING HOUSING AND 
DINING SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF THE UNIVERSITY; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REDEMPTION OF THE 
OUTSTANDING BONDS TO BE REFUNDED; AUTHORIZING 
THE SALE OF THE BONDS AND THE PREPARATION OF A 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE DESIGNATED UNIVERSITY 
REPRESENTATIVE TO MAKE CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS WITH RESPECT 
TO THE BONDS UNDER THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
SET FORTH HEREIN. 

 
 
 

ADOPTED: DECEMBER 11, 2014 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

K&L GATES LLP 
Seattle, Washington 



 

 -i- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS* 
 Page 
 
Section 1.  Definitions ............................................................................................................ 5 

Section 2.  Compliance with Parity Conditions .................................................................... 13 

Section 3.  Authorization of Series 2015 Bonds; Bond Details ............................................ 14 

Section 4.  Right of Prior Redemption and Purchase ........................................................... 14 

Section 5.  Place and Medium of Payment ........................................................................... 19 

Section 6.  Registration ......................................................................................................... 20 

Section 7.  Series 2015 Bond Fund ....................................................................................... 25 

Section 8.  Application of Proceeds of Series 2015 Bonds; and Designation of the 
Refunded Bonds .................................................................................................. 30 

Section 9.  Call For Redemption of Refunded Bonds ........................................................... 31 

Section 10.  Defeasance .......................................................................................................... 33 

Section 11.  Tax Covenants .................................................................................................... 33 

Section 12.  Form of Series 2015 Bonds and Registration Certificate ................................... 36 

Section 13.  Execution ............................................................................................................ 38 

Section 14.  Defaults and Remedies ....................................................................................... 39 

Section 15.  Sale of Series 2015 Bonds .................................................................................. 40 

Section 16.  Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure ...................................................... 44 

Section 17.  Bond Insurance; Surety Bond ............................................................................. 44 

Section 18.  Severability ......................................................................................................... 46 

Section 19.  Effective Date ..................................................................................................... 46 

Exhibit A Form of Escrow Deposit Agreement 

Exhibit B Form of Costs of Issuance Agreement 
 
* This Table of Contents and the Cover Page are for convenience of reference and are not 
intended to be a part of this Series Resolution. 

 



 

   

SERIES RESOLUTION 
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF WESTERN 
WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY; AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE AND SALE OF HOUSING AND DINING SYSTEM 
REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS OF THE UNIVERSITY IN 
THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $16,465,000 
IN ONE OR MORE SERIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REFUNDING CERTAIN OUTSTANDING HOUSING AND 
DINING SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF THE UNIVERSITY; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REDEMPTION OF THE 
OUTSTANDING BONDS TO BE REFUNDED; AUTHORIZING 
THE SALE OF THE BONDS AND THE PREPARATION OF A 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE DESIGNATED UNIVERSITY 
REPRESENTATIVE TO MAKE CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS WITH RESPECT 
TO THE BONDS UNDER THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
SET FORTH HEREIN. 

 
 WHEREAS, Western Washington University, a regional university of the State of 

Washington (the “University”), maintains a housing and dining system (defined in the 

hereinafter referred to Master Resolution as the “System”) which is in need of expansion, 

renovation and improvement from time to time; and 

 WHEREAS, the University has authorized the issuance of housing and dining system 

revenue bonds in one or more series pursuant to Resolution No. 97-09, adopted on 

December 5, 1997 (the “Master Resolution”); and 

 WHEREAS, the bonds authorized under the Master Resolution are payable from Net 

Revenues (as such term is defined in the Master Resolution); and 

WHEREAS, the University has issued and has outstanding bonds secured by a parity lien 

on the revenues of the University (the “Outstanding Parity Bonds”), as follows:   



 

 -2- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Resolution 
Number 

Date of 
Issue 

 
Designation 

Original 
Principal Amount 

Currently 
Outstanding 

Final 
Maturity

97-09 and 
98-01 

2/1/98 Housing and Dining 
System Junior Lien 
Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, 1998 Series A 
 

$17,225,000 $  8,355,000 10/1/22 

97-09 and 
2005-01 

5/24/05 Housing and Dining 
System Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2005 
 

$12,580,000 $  9,685,000 6/1/26 

97-09 and 
2006-02 

2/23/06 Housing and Dining 
System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2006 
 

$  9,620,000 $  6,690,000 4/1/26 

97-09 and 
2009-09 

6/30/09 Housing and Dining 
System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2009A and Series 
2009B 
 

$14,280,000 $13,145,000 4/1/34 

97-09 and 
2012-03 

7/19/12 Housing and Dining 
System Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 
2012 

$  9,205,000 $  7,690,000 10/1/23 

; and 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Master Resolution, the University is authorized to 

issue additional bonds having a parity of lien on Net Revenues with the Outstanding Parity 

Bonds; and 

 WHEREAS, the University has outstanding its Housing and Dining System Revenue 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, issued under date of May 24, 2005, pursuant to Resolution 

Nos. 97-09 and 2005-01, maturing in principal amounts and bearing as follows: 



 

 -3- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Maturity Years 
(June 1) 

Principal 
Amounts 

Interest 
Rates 

2015 $    645,000 3.750% 
2016 665,000 4.000 
2017 690,000 4.000 
2018 720,000 4.125 
2019 745,000 4.200 
2020 780,000 4.250 
2021 815,000 4.250 
2022 850,000 4.300 
2023 885,000 4.375 
2024 925,000 4.375 
2025 960,000 4.500 
2026 1,005,000 4.500 

 
(the “2005 Bonds”); and 

 WHEREAS, the 2005 Bonds maturing on and after June 1, 2016 (hereinafter defined as 

the “2005 Refunding Candidates”), are subject to optional redemption at the option of the 

University in whole or in part on any date on or after June 1, 2015 at par; and 

 WHEREAS, the University has outstanding its Housing and Dining System Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2006, issued under date of February 23, 2006, pursuant to Resolution Nos. 97-09 

and 2006-02, maturing in principal amounts and bearing as follows: 



 

 -4- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Maturity Years 
(April 1) 

Principal 
Amounts 

Interest 
Rates 

2015 $   440,000 4.00% 
2016 455,000 4.00 
2017 475,000 4.00 
2018 495,000 4.00 
2019 515,000 4.00 
2020 540,000 4.00 
2021 560,000 4.00 
2022 585,000 4.00 
2023 615,000 4.00 
2024 640,000 4.00 
2025 670,000 4.00 
2026 700,000 4.00 

 
(the “2006 Bonds”); and 

 WHEREAS, the 2006 Bonds maturing on and after April 1, 2016 (hereinafter defined as 

the “2006 Refunding Candidates,” and together with the 2005 Refunding Candidates, the 

“Refunding Candidates”), are subject to optional redemption at the option of the University in 

whole or in part on any date on or after April 1, 2015 at par; and 

 WHEREAS, the University has been advised that substantial debt service savings may be 

obtained by refunding some or all of the “Refunding Candidates” through the issuance of one or 

more series of revenue refunding bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$16,465,000, herein authorized to be issued under the Master Resolution (hereinafter defined as 

the “Series 2015 Bonds”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to delegate authority to the Designated University 

Representative to determine the manner of sale of the Series 2015 Bonds, the approval of the 

final principal amount of each series of the bonds, interest rates, principal maturities and 

redemption provisions of such series of bonds to be fixed under such terms and conditions as are 

approved by this Series Resolution; 



 

 -5- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY, as follows: 

 Section 1. Definitions.  Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms used in this Series 

Resolution, including the preamble hereto, which are defined in the Master Resolution shall have 

the meanings set forth in the Master Resolution.  In addition, the following terms shall have the 

following meanings in this Series Resolution: 

Acquired Obligations means the Government Obligations acquired by the University 

under the terms of this Series Resolution and the Escrow Agreement to effect the defeasance and 

refunding of the Refunded Bonds. 

Approved Bid means the winning bid submitted for a series of the Series 2015 Bonds if 

the Series 2015 Bonds are sold by Competitive Sale. 

 Beneficial Owner means any person that has or shares the power, directly or indirectly, 

to make investment decisions concerning ownership of any Series 2015 Bonds (including 

persons holding Series 2015 Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries). 

 Bond Insurance Policy means the municipal bond insurance policy issued by the Insurer 

insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on a series of the Series 2015 

Bonds as provided therein. 

 Bond Purchase Contract means, if a series of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be sold by 

Negotiated Sale, the purchase contract relating to such series of the Series 2015 Bonds between 

the University and the Underwriter. 

Call Dates mean the first date on which the Refunded Bonds may be redeemed in 

accordance with the resolutions authorizing their issuance, respectively. 



 

 -6- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and shall include all 

applicable regulations and rulings relating thereto. 

 Competitive Sale means the process by which a series of the Series 2015 Bonds are sold 

through the public solicitation of bids from underwriting firms. 

 Costs of Issuance Agreement means the agreement of that name, to be entered into by 

the University and the Escrow Agent, providing for the payment of certain costs of issuance with 

respect to the issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds, substantially in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit B. 

 Disclosure Agreement means the commitment of the University to comply with the 

ongoing disclosure requirements of the Rule. 

 DTC means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose 

trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, as depository for the 

Series 2015 Bonds pursuant to Section 6 hereof. 

Escrow Agent means the escrow agent as selected by the Designated University 

Representative in accordance with Section 8 of this Series Resolution. 

Escrow Agreement means the Escrow Deposit Agreement to be dated as of the date of 

closing and delivery of a series of the Series 2015 Bonds substantially in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit A. 

 Future Parity Bonds means those revenue bonds or other revenue obligations which may 

be issued by the University in the future as Parity Bonds. 

 Government Obligations means obligations defined as such in Chapter 39.53 RCW as 

now or hereafter amended. 



 

 -7- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Insurer means such bond insurance company, if any, from which a Bond Insurance 

Policy may be acquired for the Series 2015 Bonds, in accordance with this Series Resolution. 

 Letter of Representations means a blanket issuer letter of representations from the 

University to DTC. 

 MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any successor to its 

functions.  Until otherwise designated by the MSRB or the SEC, any information, reports or 

notices submitted to the MSRB in compliance with the Rule are to be submitted through the 

MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system (“EMMA”), currently located at 

www.emma.msrb.org. 

 Negotiated Sale means the process by which a series of the Series 2015 Bonds are sold 

by negotiation to one or more underwriting firms selected by the Designated University 

Representative. 

 Net Proceeds when used with reference to the Series 2015 Bonds, means the face amount 

of the Series 2015 Bonds, plus accrued interest and original issue premium, if any, and less 

original issue discount and proceeds deposited into the Series 2015 Reserve Account, if any. 

 Official Notice of Sale means, if a series of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be sold by 

Competitive Sale, the notice of bond sale authorized to be given in Section 15 of this Series 

Resolution. 

Outstanding Parity Bonds means the outstanding parity bonds identified in the recitals of 

this Series Resolution. 

 Parity Bonds means any revenue obligations issued by the University pursuant to the 

Master Resolution, which Parity Bonds have a lien upon the Net Revenues for the payment of 

the principal thereof and interest thereon equal to the lien created upon Net Revenues for the 



 

 -8- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2015 Bonds, and the term “Parity Bonds” 

shall mean and include the Outstanding Parity Bonds, the Series 2015 Bonds and any Future 

Parity Bonds. 

 Private Person means any natural person engaged in a trade or business or any trust, 

estate, partnership, association, company or corporation. 

 Private Person Use means the use of property in a trade or business by a private person if 

such use is other than as a member of the general public.  Private Person Use includes ownership 

of the property by the private person as well as other arrangements that transfer to the private 

person the actual or beneficial use of the property (such as a lease, management or incentive 

payment contract or other special arrangement) in such a manner as to set the private person 

apart from the general public.  Use of property as a member of the general public includes 

attendance by the private person at municipal meetings or business rental of property to the 

private person on a day-to-day basis if the rental paid by such private person is the same as the 

rental paid by any private person who desires to rent the property.  Use of property by nonprofit 

community groups or community recreational groups is not treated as Private Person Use if such 

use is incidental to the governmental uses of property, the property is made available for such 

use by all such community groups on an equal basis and such community groups are charged 

only a de minimis fee to cover custodial and utility expenses. 

 Qualified Insurance means any non-cancellable municipal bond insurance policy or 

surety bond issued by any insurance company licensed to conduct an insurance business in any 

state of the United States (or by a service corporation acting on behalf of one or more such 

insurance companies) (A) which insurance company or companies, as of the time of issuance of 

such policy or surety bond, are rated in one of the two highest Rating Categories by Moody’s 



 

 -9- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group or their legal successors for unsecured 

debt or insurance underwriting or claims paying ability or (B) by issuing its policies causes 

obligations insured thereby to be rated in one of the two highest Rating Categories. 

 Qualified Letter of Credit means any irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial 

institution, which institution maintains an office, agency or branch in the United States and as of 

the time of issuance of such letter of credit, is rated in one of the three highest Rating Categories 

by Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group or their legal successors, if 

any. 

 Rating Agency means Moody’s Investors Service or Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group. 

 Rating Category means the generic rating categories of the Rating Agency, without 

regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating category by a numerical modifier or 

otherwise. 

Refunded Bonds means, collectively, the 2005 Refunded Bonds and the 2006 Refunded 

Bonds. 

 Refunding Candidates means, collectively, the 2005 Refunding Candidates and the 2006 

Refunding Candidates. 

 Registered Owner means the person named as the registered owner of a Series 2015 

Bond in the Bond Register.  The Registered Owner shall be deemed to be the owner of all the 

Series 2015 Bonds, except for the purposes of Section 16 of this Series Resolution. 

 Registrar means, collectively, the fiscal agency of the State of Washington, appointed by 

this Series Resolution for the purposes of registering and authenticating the Series 2015 Bonds, 

maintaining the Bond Register, and effecting transfer of ownership of the Series 2015 Bonds. 



 

 -10- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Rule means Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act 

of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

Savings Target means a dollar amount at least equal to 5% for each the 2005 Refunded 

Bonds and the 2006 Refunded Bonds. 

 SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 Series 2015 Bond Fund means the Western Washington University Housing and Dining 

System Revenue Bond Fund, Series 2015 created in the office of the Treasurer of the University 

by Section 7 of this Series Resolution. 

 Series 2015 Bonds means the Western Washington University, Housing and Dining 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 issued in one or more series, authorized to be 

issued by Section 3 of this Series Resolution.  

 Series 2015 Debt Service Account means the account of that name created in the Series 

2015 Bond Fund by Section 7 of this Series Resolution. 

 Series 2015 Reserve Account means the account of that name, if any, created in the 

Series 2015 Bond Fund by Section 7 of this Series Resolution. 

 Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement means the amount, if any, specified in the 

Bond Purchase Contract if the Series 2015 Bonds are sold by Negotiated Sale and/or by the 

University in the Official Notice of Sale if the Series 2015 Bonds are sold by Competitive Sale. 

 Surety Bond means the surety bond, if any, issued by the Insurer on the date of issuance 

and delivery of a series of the Series 2015 Bonds for the purpose of satisfying the Series 2015 

Reserve Account Requirement. 

 Surety Bond Agreement means the agreement pursuant to which the Surety Bond is 

issued. 



 

 -11- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 System has the meaning given such term in the Master Resolution and in addition, the 

term “System” shall include all Residence Halls, Birnam Wood Apartments, Dining Commons, 

Viking Union, Lakewood Recreational Facility and the Commissary. 

 Term Bonds means any Series 2015 Bonds designated as “Term Bonds” in the Bond 

Purchase Contract or Approved Bid for such Series 2015 Bonds. 

 Treasurer means the Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs of the University 

or any successor to the functions of such office, and also shall include any designee of the 

Treasurer for the performance of specific functions under this resolution. 

 2005 Bond Resolution means Resolution No. 2005-01 adopted on March 18, 2005 

authorizing the 2005 Bonds. 

 2005 Bonds means the Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2005 of the University issued pursuant to the 2005 Bond Resolution, issued under date of 

May 24, 2005, and presently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $9,685,000. 

 2005 Refunded Bonds means those 2005 Refunding Candidates designated by the 

Designated University Representative or his/her designee pursuant to authority delegated by 

Section 15 of this resolution. 

 2005 Refunding Candidates means the 2005 Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 2016. 

 2006 Bond Resolution means Resolution No. 2006-02 adopted on February 3, 2006 

authorizing the 2006 Bonds. 

 2006 Bonds means the Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 of the 

University issued pursuant to the 2006 Bond Resolution, issued under date of February 23, 2006, 

and presently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $6,690,000. 



 

 -12- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 2006 Refunded Bonds means those 2006 Refunding Candidates designated by the 

Designated University Representative or his/her designee pursuant to authority delegated by 

Section 15 of this resolution. 

 2006 Refunding Candidates means the 2006 Bonds maturing on or after April 1, 2016. 

Underwriter means the initial purchaser or representative of the purchasers (if more than 

one firm acts collectively with one or more additional underwriting firms) of a series of the 

Series 2015 Bonds. 

 Rules of Interpretation.  In this Series Resolution, unless the context otherwise 

requires: 

 (a) The terms “hereby,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herein, “hereunder” and any similar 

terms, as used in this Series Resolution, refer to this Series Resolution as a whole and not to any 

particular article, section, subdivision or clause hereof, and the term “hereafter” shall mean after, 

and the term “heretofore” shall mean before, the date of this Series Resolution; 

 (b) Words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the 

feminine and neuter genders and words importing the singular number shall mean and include 

the plural number and vice versa; 

 (c) Words importing persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships (including 

limited partnerships), trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public bodies, as 

well as natural persons; 

 (d) Any headings preceding the text of the several articles and Sections of this Series 

Resolution, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be 

solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Series Resolution, nor 

shall they affect its meaning, construction or effect; 



 

 -13- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 (e) All references herein to “articles,” “sections” and other subdivisions or clauses 

are to the corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions or clauses hereof. 

 (f) Words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa. 

 In this Series Resolution, the Treasurer is authorized to create a number of “funds” and/or 

“accounts.”  In each case, the Treasurer may designate each such fund or account in his or her 

discretion as a fund or as an account, regardless of its designation in this Series Resolution. 

 Section 2. Compliance with Parity Conditions.  The University has reserved the right 

pursuant to the Master Resolution to issue Future Parity Bonds upon compliance with certain 

conditions set forth therein.  The University hereby finds and determines, as required by 

Sections 5 and 6 of the Master Resolution as follows: 

  First, the University has not been in default of its covenant under Section 7(a) of 

the Master Resolution for the immediately preceding year (year ending June 30, 2014); and 

  Second, that the Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Outstanding Bonds after 

the issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds shall not be greater than the Maximum Annual Debt 

Service were such refunding not to occur. 

 The Series 2015 Bonds will not be issued unless the Designated University 

Representative certifies that the University has not been in default of its covenant under Section 

7(a) of the Master Resolution for the immediately preceding year.  The limitations contained and 

the conditions provided in the Master Resolution having been complied with or assured, the 

payments required herein to be made out of the Net Revenues to pay and secure the principal of 

and interest on the Series 2015 Bonds shall constitute a lien and charge upon such Net Revenues 

equal in rank to the lien and charge thereon of the Outstanding Parity Bonds. 



 

 -14- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Section 3. Authorization of Series 2015 Bonds; Bond Details.   

 (a) Authorization of the Series 2015 Bonds.  For the purpose of refunding the 

Refunded Bonds and thereby effecting a savings to the University, paying the cost of funding the 

Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement, if any, and paying costs of issuance of the Series 

2015 Bonds, the University shall issue its housing and dining system revenue refunding bonds in 

one or more series in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $16,465,000. 

(b) Bond Details. The Series 2015 Bonds shall be designated as “Western 

Washington University Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015”, 

with additional designations as requested (the “Series 2015 Bonds”), shall be registered as to 

both principal and interest, shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each, or any integral multiple 

thereof, provided that no Series 2015 Bond shall represent more than one series and maturity; 

shall be numbered separately in the manner and with any additional designation as the Registrar 

deems necessary for purposes of identification, shall be dated and bear interest at the per annum 

rates, payable on the dates and maturing in principal amounts set forth in the Approved Bid or 

Bond Purchase Contract, pursuant to Section 15 of this Series Resolution.  The Series 2015 

Bonds of any of the series or maturities may be combined and issued as term bonds (“Term 

Bonds”), subject to mandatory redemption as provided in the Approved Bid or Bond Purchase 

Contract. 

 Section 4. Right of Prior Redemption and Purchase. 

 (a) Optional Redemption.  The Series 2015 Bonds of a series may include provision 

for optional redemption on the dates, at the prices and under the terms set forth in the Bond 

Purchase Contract or Approved Bid approved by the Designated University Representative 

pursuant to Section 15. 



 

 -15- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 (b) Mandatory Redemption.  The Series 2015 Bonds of a series shall be subject to 

mandatory redemption to the extent, if any, set forth in the Bond Purchase Contract or Approved 

Bid and as approved by the Designated University Representative pursuant to Section 15. 

 (c) Purchase of Series 2015 Bonds.  The Series 2015 Bonds may be purchased at any 

time, to the extent that such Series 2015 Bonds are offered to the University at any price deemed 

reasonable by the Treasurer but only to the extent of Gross Revenue available after providing for 

the payments required by paragraphs first through sixth of Section 2(a) of the Master Resolution. 

 (d) Selection of Series 2015 Bonds for Redemption.  As long as the Series 2015 

Bonds are held in book-entry only form, the maturities to be redeemed, if any, shall be selected 

by the University and, within a maturity, the selection of Series 2015 Bonds of such series to be 

redeemed shall be made in accordance with the operational arrangements in effect at DTC.  If the 

Series 2015 Bonds are no longer held in uncertificated form, the selection of such Series 2015 

Bonds to be redeemed shall be made as provided in this subsection (d).  If the University 

redeems at any one time fewer than all of the Series 2015 Bonds having the same series and 

maturity date, the particular Series 2015 Bonds or portions of Series 2015 Bonds of such series 

and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by lot (or in such other manner determined by the 

Registrar) in increments of $5,000.  In the case of a Series 2015 Bond of a denomination greater 

than $5,000, the University and Registrar shall treat each Series 2015 Bond as representing such 

number of separate Series 2015 Bonds each of the denomination of $5,000 as is obtained by 

dividing the actual principal amount of such Series 2015 Bond by $5,000.  In the event that only 

a portion of the principal sum of a Series 2015 Bond is redeemed, upon surrender of the such 

Series 2015 Bond at the principal office of the Registrar there shall be issued to the Registered 

Owner, without charge therefor, for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum thereof, at 



 

 -16- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

the option of the Registered Owner, a Series 2015 Bond or Series 2015 Bonds of like series, 

maturity and interest rate in any of the denominations herein authorized. 

 (e) Notice of Redemption. 

  (1) Official Notice.  Unless waived by any owner of Series 2015 Bonds to be 

redeemed, official notice of any such redemption (which notice, in the case of a conditional 

redemption, shall state that redemption is conditioned by the Registrar on the receipt of sufficient 

funds for redemption) shall be given by the Registrar on behalf of the University by mailing a 

copy of an official redemption notice by first class mail at least 20 days and not more than 

60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the Registered Owner of the Series 2015 Bond 

or Series 2015 Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Register or at such other 

address as is furnished in writing by such Registered Owner to the Registrar. 

 All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state: 

   (A) the redemption date, 

   (B) the redemption price, 

   (C) if fewer than all Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds are to be 

redeemed, the identification by series and maturity (and, in the case of partial redemption, the 

respective principal amounts) of the Series 2015 Bonds to be redeemed, 

   (D) that on the redemption date, provided that in the case of optional 

redemption the full amount of the redemption price is on deposit therefor, the redemption price 

will become due and payable upon each such Series 2015 Bond or portion thereof called for 

redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date, 



 

 -17- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

   (E) the place where such Series 2015 Bonds are to be surrendered for 

payment of the redemption price, which place of payment shall be the principal office of the 

Registrar, and 

   (F) that the notice of redemption may be withdrawn and the proposed 

redemption of Series 2015 Bonds cancelled if for any reason funds will not be available on the 

date fixed for redemption. 

 Unless the University has revoked the notice of redemption, on or prior to any 

redemption date, the Treasurer shall deposit with the Registrar an amount of money sufficient to 

pay the redemption price of all the Series 2015 Bonds or portions of Series 2015 Bonds which 

are to be redeemed on that date. 

 Failure to give notice as to redemption of any Series 2015 Bond or any defect in such 

notice shall not invalidate redemption of any other Series 2015 Bond. 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Series 2015 Bonds are then held in book-entry only 

form, notice of redemption to any Registered Owner or beneficial owner of Series 2015 Bonds 

shall be given only in accordance with the operational arrangements then in effect at DTC but 

not less than twenty (20) days prior to the date of redemption. 

  (2) Effect of Notice; Series 2015 Bonds Due.  Official notice of redemption 

having been given as aforesaid, the Series 2015 Bonds or portions of Series 2015 Bonds so to be 

redeemed shall, on the redemption date (unless in the case of conditional redemption the 

conditions have not been fulfilled and the notice or redemption therefore withdrawn), become 

due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date such 

Series 2015 Bonds or portions of Series 2015 Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender 

of such Series 2015 Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Series 2015 



 

 -18- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Bonds shall be paid by the Registrar at the redemption price.  Installments of interest due on or 

prior to a mandatory redemption date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest.  

Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Series 2015 Bond, there shall be prepared for 

the Registered Owner a new Series 2015 Bond or Series 2015 Bonds of the same series and 

maturity in the aggregate amount of the unpaid principal.  All Series 2015 Bonds which have 

been redeemed shall be canceled and destroyed by the Registrar and shall not be reissued. 

  (3) Additional Notice.  In addition to the foregoing notice, further notice may 

be given by the University as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to 

give all or any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call 

for redemption if notice thereof is given as above prescribed.  Each further notice of redemption 

given hereunder shall contain the information required above for an official notice of redemption 

plus (A) the CUSIP numbers of all Series 2015 Bonds being redeemed; (B) the date of issue of 

the Series 2015 Bonds as originally issued; (C) the rate of interest borne by each Series 2015 

Bond being redeemed; (D) the maturity date of each Series 2015 Bond being redeemed; and 

(E) any other descriptive information needed to identify accurately the Series 2015 Bonds being 

redeemed.  Each further notice of redemption may be sent at least twenty (20) before the 

redemption date to the Insurer, if any, and to each party entitled to receive notice pursuant to 

Section 16 of this Series Resolution, and to the original purchaser of the Series 2015 Bonds or to 

its business successors, if any, and to such persons (including the MSRB who customarily at the 

time receive notices of redemption in accordance with rules promulgated by the SEC) and with 

such additional information as the Registrar deem appropriate, but such mailings shall not be a 

condition precedent to the redemption of such Series 2015 Bonds. 



 

 -19- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

  (4) Use of CUSIP Numbers.  Upon the payment of the redemption price of 

Series 2015 Bonds being redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose 

shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by maturity, the Series 2015 Bonds being redeemed 

with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

  (5) Amendment of Notice Provisions.  The foregoing notice provisions of this 

Section 4, including but not limited to the information to be included in redemption notices and 

the persons designated to receive notices, may be amended by additions, deletions and changes 

in order to maintain compliance with duly promulgated regulations and recommendations 

regarding notices of redemption of municipal securities. 

 Section 5. Place and Medium of Payment.  The principal of, premium, if any, and 

interest on the Series 2015 Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of 

America.  Interest on the Series 2015 Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year 

consisting of twelve 30-day months.  For so long as all Series 2015 Bonds are in fully 

immobilized form, such payments of principal and interest thereon shall be made as provided in 

the operational arrangements of DTC as referred to in the Letter of Representations. 

 In the event that the Series 2015 Bonds are no longer in fully immobilized form, interest 

on the Series 2015 Bonds shall be paid by check or draft mailed (or by wire transfer to a 

Registered Owner of such Series 2015 Bonds in aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000 or 

more who so requests) to the Registered Owners of the Series 2015 Bonds at the addresses for 

such Registered Owners appearing on the Bond Register on the 15th day of the month preceding 

the interest payment date.  Principal and premium, if any, of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be 

payable upon presentation and surrender of such Series 2015 Bonds by the Registered Owners at 

the principal office of the Registrar. 



 

 -20- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 6. Registration. 

 (a) Registrar/Bond Register.  The University hereby specifies and adopts the system 

of registration for the Series 2015 Bonds as approved by the State Finance Committee of the 

State of Washington from time to time.  The University shall cause a bond register to be 

maintained by the Registrar.  So long as any Series 2015 Bonds remain Outstanding, the 

Registrar shall make all necessary provisions to permit the exchange and registration of transfer 

of Series 2015 Bonds at its principal corporate trust office.  The Registrar may be removed at 

any time at the option of the Treasurer upon prior notice to the Registrar, the Insurer, and a 

successor Registrar appointed by the Treasurer.  No resignation or removal of the Registrar shall 

be effective until a successor shall have been appointed and until the successor Registrar shall 

have accepted the duties of the Registrar hereunder.  The Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the 

University, to authenticate and deliver Series 2015 Bonds transferred or exchanged in 

accordance with the provisions of such Series 2015 Bonds and this Series Resolution and to 

carry out all of the Registrar’s powers and duties under this Series Resolution.  The Registrar 

shall be responsible for its representations contained in the Certificate of Authentication on the 

Series 2015 Bonds.   

 (b) Registered Ownership.  The University and the Registrar, each in its discretion, 

may deem and treat the Registered Owner of each Series 2015 Bond as the absolute owner 

thereof for all purposes (except as provided in Section 16 of this resolution), and neither the 

University nor the Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  Payment of any such 

Series 2015 Bond shall be made only as described in Section 5 hereof, but such Series 2015 

Bond may be transferred as herein provided.  All such payments made as described in Section 5 



 

 -21- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

shall be valid and shall satisfy and discharge the liability of the University upon such Series 

2015 Bond to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.   

 (c) DTC Acceptance/Letter of Representations.  To induce DTC to accept the 

Series 2015 Bonds as eligible for deposit at DTC, the University has executed and delivered a 

Letter of Representations to DTC.   

 Neither the University nor the Registrar will have any responsibility or obligation to DTC 

participants or the persons for whom they act as nominees (or any successor depository) with 

respect to the Series 2015 Bonds in respect of the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC 

(or any successor depository) or any DTC participant, the payment by DTC (or any successor 

depository) or any DTC participant of any amount in respect of the principal of or interest on 

Series 2015 Bonds, any notice which is permitted or required to be given to Registered Owners 

under this Series Resolution (except such notices as shall be required to be given by the 

University to the Registrar or to DTC (or any successor depository)), or any consent given or 

other action taken by DTC (or any successor depository) as the Registered Owner.  For so long 

as any Series 2015 Bonds are held in fully immobilized form hereunder, DTC or its successor 

depository shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner for all purposes hereunder, and all 

references herein to the Registered Owners shall mean DTC (or any successor depository) or its 

nominee and shall not mean the owners of any beneficial interest in such Series 2015 Bonds. 

 If any Series 2015 Bond shall be duly presented for payment and funds have not been 

duly provided by the University on such applicable date, then interest shall continue to accrue 

thereafter on the unpaid principal thereof at the rate stated on such Series 2015 Bond until such 

Series 2015 Bond is paid. 



 

 -22- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 (d) Use of Depository. 

 (1) The Series 2015 Bonds shall be registered initially in the name of 

“CEDE & CO.”, as nominee of DTC, with one Series 2015 Bond maturing on each of the 

maturity dates for the Series 2015 Bonds in a denomination corresponding to the total principal 

therein designated to mature on such date.  Registered ownership of such immobilized Series 

2015 Bonds, or any portions thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except (A) to any 

successor of DTC or its nominee, provided that any such successor shall be qualified under any 

applicable laws to provide the service proposed to be provided by it; (B) to any substitute 

depository appointed by the Board pursuant to subsection (ii) below or such substitute 

depository’s successor; or (C) to any person as provided in subsection (iv) below. 

 (2) Upon the resignation of DTC or its successor (or any substitute depository 

or its successor) from its functions as depository or a determination by the Board to discontinue 

the system of book entry transfers through DTC or its successor (or any substitute depository or 

its successor), the Board may hereafter appoint a substitute depository.  Any such substitute 

depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the services proposed to be 

provided by it. 

 (3) In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (A) or (B) of subsection (1) 

above, the Registrar shall, upon receipt of all Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds, together with a 

written request on behalf of the Board, issue a single new Series 2015 Bond for each maturity of 

the Series 2015 Bonds then Outstanding, registered in the name of such successor or such 

substitute depository, or their nominees, as the case may be, all as specified in such written 

request of the Board. 



 

 -23- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 (4) In the event that (A) DTC or its successor (or substitute depository or its 

successor) resigns from its functions as depository, and no substitute depository can be obtained, 

or (B) the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the 

Series 2015 Bonds that such owners be able to obtain such bonds in the form of Series 2015 

Bond certificates, the ownership of such Series 2015 Bonds may then be transferred to any 

person or entity as herein provided, and shall no longer be held in fully immobilized form.  The 

Designated University Representative shall deliver a written request to the Registrar, together 

with a supply of definitive Series 2015 Bonds, to issue Series 2015 Bonds as herein provided in 

any authorized denomination.  Upon receipt by the Registrar of all then Outstanding Series 2015 

Bonds together with a written request on behalf of the Board to the Registrar, new Series 2015 

Bonds shall be issued in the appropriate denominations and registered in the names of such 

persons as are requested in such written request. 

 (e) Registration of Transfer of Ownership or Exchange; Change in Denominations.  

If the Series 2015 Bonds are no longer held in book-entry only form, the transfer of any Series 

2015 Bond may be registered and Series 2015 Bonds may be exchanged, but no transfer of any 

such Series 2015 Bond shall be valid unless such Series 2015 Bond is surrendered to the 

Registrar with the assignment form appearing on such Series 2015 Bond duly executed by the 

Registered Owner or such Registered Owner’s duly authorized agent in a manner satisfactory to 

the Registrar.  Upon such surrender, the Registrar shall cancel the surrendered Series 2015 Bond 

and shall authenticate and deliver, without charge to the Registered Owner or transferee therefor, 

a new Series 2015 Bond (or Series 2015 Bonds at the option of the new Registered Owner) of 

the same date, maturity and interest rate and for the same aggregate principal amount in any 

authorized denomination, naming as Registered Owner the person or persons listed as the 



 

 -24- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

assignee on the assignment form appearing on the surrendered Series 2015 Bond, in exchange 

for such surrendered and canceled Series 2015 Bond.  If the Series 2015 Bonds are no longer 

held in book-entry only form, any Series 2015 Bond may be surrendered to the Registrar and 

exchanged, without charge, for an equal aggregate principal amount of Series 2015 Bonds of the 

same date, maturity and interest rate, in any authorized denomination or denominations.  The 

Registrar shall not be obligated to register the transfer or to exchange any Series 2015 Bond 

during the 15 days preceding the date any such Series 2015 Bond is to be redeemed. 

 (f) Registrar’s Ownership of Series 2015 Bonds.  The Registrar may become the 

Registered Owner of any Series 2015 Bond with the same rights it would have if it were not the 

Registrar, and to the extent permitted by law, may act as depository for and permit any of its 

officers or directors to act as member of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any committee 

formed to protect the right of the Registered Owners of Series 2015 Bonds. 

 (g) Registration Covenant.  The University covenants that, until all Series 2015 

Bonds have been surrendered and canceled, it will maintain a system for recording the 

ownership of each Series 2015 Bond that complies with the provisions of Section 149 of the 

Code. 

 (h) Series 2015 Bonds Payable from Series 2015 Bond Fund.  The Series 2015 Bonds 

shall be obligations only of the Series 2015 Bond Fund and shall be payable and secured as 

provided herein and in the Master Resolution.  The Series 2015 Bonds are not general 

obligations of the University or of the State of Washington.  The Series 2015 Bonds do not 

constitute an indebtedness of the University within the meaning of the constitutional provisions 

and limitations of the State of Washington. 



 

 -25- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 7. Series 2015 Bond Fund.  A special fund of the University designated the 

“Western Washington University Housing and Dining System Revenue Bond Fund, 

Series 2015” (the “Series 2015 Bond Fund”) is hereby authorized to be created in the office of 

the Treasurer for the purpose of paying and securing the payment of the Series 2015 Bonds.  The 

Series 2015 Bond Fund shall be held separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the 

University and shall be a trust fund for the owners, from time to time, of the Series 2015 Bonds. 

 (a) Series 2015 Debt Service Account.  If the Bond Purchase Contract or University 

specifies an amount to be held as the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement in the Series 

2015 Reserve Account, a separate account within the Series 2015 Bond Fund, to be designated 

as the Series 2015 Debt Service Account is hereby authorized to be created in the Series 2015 

Bond Fund for the purpose of paying the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 

2015 Bonds. 

 The University hereby irrevocably obligates and binds itself for as long as any 

Series 2015 Bonds remain Outstanding to set aside and pay into the Series 2015 Debt Service 

Account from Net Revenues or moneys in the Revenue Fund, on or prior to the respective dates 

the same become due: 

  (1) Such amounts as are required to pay the interest scheduled to become due 

on Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds; and 

  (2) Such amounts with respect to Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds as are 

required (A) to pay maturing principal, (B) to make required sinking fund payments, and 

(C) to redeem Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds in accordance with any mandatory 

redemption provisions. 



 

 -26- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 (b) Series 2015 Reserve Account.  If the Bond Purchase Contract or University 

specifies an amount to be maintained as the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement, a Series 

2015 Bond Reserve Account (the “Series 2015 Reserve Account”) shall be created in the Series 

2015 Bond Fund for the purpose of securing the payment of the principal of and interest on 

Series 2015 Bonds. 

 The University hereby covenants and agrees that on the date of issuance of the 

Series 2015 Bonds, it will provide for the funding of the Series 2015 Reserve Account in an 

amount sufficient to satisfy the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement, if any.  Such deposit 

will be made in the form of a surety bond, as Qualified Insurance, or in the form of cash or other 

securities, as necessary.  The Designated University Representative is hereby authorized and 

directed to determine the method of funding of the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement.  

 The University further covenants and agrees that it will maintain the Series 2015 Reserve 

Account Requirement throughout the term of the Series 2015 Bonds, except for permitted 

withdrawals therefrom.  The Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement may be maintained by 

deposits of cash, a Qualified Letter of Credit or Qualified Insurance, or a combination of the 

foregoing.  In computing the amount on hand in the Series 2015 Reserve Account, Qualified 

Insurance and/or a Qualified Letter of Credit shall be valued at the face amount thereof, and all 

other obligations purchased as an investment of moneys therein shall be valued at its market 

value, and shall be revalued at least once each year.  At the time of revaluation of obligations 

held in the Series 2015 Reserve Account, if it is determined that the balance on hand in the 

Series 2015 Reserve Account is less than the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement, then 

the University shall transfer sufficient funds to make up this deficiency within one year of the 

date of such determination. 



 

 -27- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Whenever there is a sufficient amount in the Series 2015 Bond Fund, including the Series 

2015 Reserve Account and the Series 2015 Debt Service Account to pay the principal of, 

premium, if any, and interest on all outstanding Series 2015 Bonds, the money in the Series 2015 

Reserve Account may be used to pay such principal, premium, if any, and interest.  Money in the 

Series 2015 Reserve Account may be withdrawn to redeem and retire, and to pay the interest due 

to such date of redemption and premium, if any, on any Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds, so long 

as the moneys left remaining on deposit in the Series 2015 Reserve Account are equal to the 

Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement.  The University may also transfer out of the Series 

2015 Reserve Account any moneys required in order to prevent any Series 2015 Bonds from 

becoming “arbitrage bonds” under the Code. 

 If a deficiency in the Series 2015 Debt Service Account shall occur, such deficiency shall 

be made up from the Series 2015 Reserve Account by the withdrawal of cash therefrom for that 

purpose and by the sale or redemption of obligations held in the Series 2015 Reserve Account, if 

necessary, in such amounts as will provide cash in the Series 2015 Reserve Account sufficient to 

make up any such deficiency, and if a deficiency still exists immediately prior to an interest 

payment date and after the withdrawal of cash, the University shall then draw from any Qualified 

Letter of Credit, Qualified Insurance, or other equivalent credit facility for the Series 2015 Bonds 

in sufficient amount to make up the deficiency.  Such draw shall be made at such times and 

under such conditions as the agreement for such Qualified Letter of Credit or such Qualified 

Insurance shall provide.  Reimbursement shall be made to the issuer of the Surety Bond in 

accordance with the terms of the Surety Bond Agreement, and after making necessary provision 

for the payments required to be made in paragraph First through Third of Section 2(a) of the 

Master Resolution.  Any deficiency created in the Series 2015 Reserve Account by reason of any 



 

 -28- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

such withdrawal shall be made up within one year from Qualified Insurance or a Qualified Letter 

of Credit or out of Net Revenues (or out of any other moneys on hand legally available for such 

purpose) (in 12 approximately equal installments) after making necessary provision for the 

payments required to be made into the Series 2015 Debt Service Account within such year. 

 In making the payments and credits to the Series 2015 Reserve Account required by this 

Section 7(b), to the extent that the University has obtained Qualified Insurance or a Qualified 

Letter of Credit for specific amounts required pursuant to this section to be paid out of the 

Series 2015 Reserve Account, such amounts so covered by Qualified Insurance or a Qualified 

Letter of Credit shall be credited against the amounts required to be maintained in the Series 

2015 Reserve Account by this Section 7(b) to the extent that such payments and credits to be 

made are insured by an insurance company, or guaranteed by a letter of credit from a financial 

institution.  Such Qualified Letter of Credit or Qualified Insurance shall not be cancellable on 

less than one year’s notice.  In the event of any cancellation of the Qualified Insurance, or 

Qualified Letter of Credit, for reasons other than insolvency of the issuer of the Qualified 

Insurance or the Qualified Letter of Credit, the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement shall 

be satisfied within one year of the date of cancellation with Qualified Insurance or another 

Qualified Letter of Credit, or if the issuer of the Qualified Insurance or the Qualified Letter of 

Credit shall be insolvent the Series 2015 Reserve Account Requirement shall be satisfied within 

five years (in 60 approximately equal installments) of the insolvency or cancellation out of Net 

Revenues (or out of moneys on hand legally available for such purpose) after making necessary 

provisions for the payments required to be made into the Series 2015 Debt Service Account. 

 (c) Pledged Amount.  In Section 7(h) of the Master Resolution, the Board has 

covenanted and agreed to establish, maintain and collect Services and Activities Fees at least 



 

 -29- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

equal to the Pledged Amount.  Further, the Master Resolution retains the authority of the Board 

to increase the “Pledged Amount” to include additional fees specifically pledged to one or more 

series of Bonds.  The Board hereby covenants and agrees that it will allocate such additional 

portion of the aggregate Services and Activities Fees (imposed by the Board from time to time in 

the future) as are necessary to meet the required payments into the Series 2015 Debt Service 

Account to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2015 Bonds as the same becomes due 

and payable. 

 (d) Lien of Deposits into Series 2015 Bond Fund.  Said amounts so pledged to be paid 

into the Series 2015 Debt Service Account and Series 2015 Reserve Account with respect to the 

Series 2015 Bonds are hereby declared to be an equal and prior lien and charge upon the Gross 

Revenue superior to all other charges of any kind or nature whatsoever, except for Operating 

Expenses and except that the amounts so pledged are of equal lien to the lien and charge of the 

Outstanding Parity Bonds and to any lien which may hereafter be made to pay and secure the 

payment of the principal of and interest on any Future Parity Bonds. 

 (e) Use of Excess Money.  Money in the Series 2015 Bond Fund not needed to pay 

the interest or principal and interest next coming due on any Outstanding Series 2015 Bonds or 

to maintain required reserves therefor may be used to purchase or redeem and retire Series 2015 

Bonds.  Money in the Revenue Fund, the Series 2015 Debt Service Account and the Series 2015 

Reserve Account may be commingled for investment purposes and may be invested in any 

investments legal for the University; subject to the limitations set forth in Section 11 hereof. 



 

 -30- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 8. Application of Proceeds of Series 2015 Bonds; and Designation of the 

Refunded Bonds.   

 (a) Designation of Refunded Bonds.  As outlined in the recitals to this resolution, 

certain principal maturities of the 2005 Bonds and the 2006 Bonds may be called for redemption 

prior to their scheduled maturities.  All or some of these bonds may be refunded and defeased 

with the proceeds of the Bonds authorized by this resolution (“Refunding Candidates”).  As 

provided in Section 15, the Designated University Representative may select some or all of the 

Refunding Candidates and designate those Refunding Candidates as the “Refunded Bonds” in 

the Notice of Sale or the Bond Purchase Contract.  

 (b) Application of Proceeds.  Proceeds of sale of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be 

delivered to the Escrow Agent for the purpose of defeasing the Refunded Bonds and paying 

related costs of issuance. 

 Money received by the Escrow Agent from Series 2015 Bond proceeds and other money 

provided by the University, shall be used immediately upon receipt thereof to defease the 

Refunded Bonds as authorized by the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Bonds 

and to pay costs of issuance.  The University shall defease the Refunded Bonds and discharge 

such obligations by the use of money deposited with the Escrow Agent to purchase certain 

Government Obligations (which obligations so purchased, are herein called “Acquired 

Obligations”), bearing such interest and maturing as to principal and interest in such amounts 

and at such times which, together with any necessary beginning cash balance, will provide for 

the payment of: 

  (1) interest on the Refunded Bonds coming due on or before the Call Dates; 

and 



 

 -31- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

  (2) the redemption price (100% of the principal amount thereof) on the Call 

Dates of the respective Refunded Bonds. 

 Such Acquired Obligations shall be purchased at a yield not greater than the yield 

permitted by the Code and regulations relating to acquired obligations in connection with 

refunding bond issues. 

 The Designated University Representative is hereby authorized to appoint a qualified 

banking association to act as the escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) for the Refunded Bonds and 

to designate an accounting firm to act as escrow verification agent.  A beginning cash balance, if 

any, and Acquired Obligations shall be deposited irrevocably with the Escrow Agent in an 

amount sufficient to defease the Refunded Bonds.  The proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds 

remaining after acquisition of the Acquired Obligations and provision for the necessary 

beginning cash balance shall be utilized to pay expenses of the acquisition and safekeeping of 

the Acquired Obligations and expenses of the issuance of the Bonds and/or returned to the 

University for the payment of such expenses. 

 Section 9. Call For Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  The University hereby directs 

that sufficient funds be irrevocably set aside for the purchase of Acquired Obligations from 

proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds to make the payments described in Section 8 of this Series 

Resolution. 

 The University hereby irrevocably calls the Refunded Bonds for redemption on the Call 

Dates in accordance with terms of the resolutions pursuant to which the Refunded Bonds were 

issued authorizing the redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds prior to their fixed 

maturities. 



 

 -32- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Said defeasance and call for redemption of the Refunded Bonds shall be irrevocable after 

the final establishment of the escrow account and delivery of the Acquired Obligations to the 

Escrow Agent. 

 The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized and directed to provide for the giving of notice of 

the redemption of the Refunded Bonds in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 

resolutions pursuant to which the Refunded Bonds were issued.  The Treasurer of the University 

is authorized and requested to provide whatever assistance is necessary to accomplish such 

redemption and the giving of notices therefor.  The costs of publication of such notices shall be 

an expense of the System. 

 The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized and directed to pay to the Treasurer of the 

University, or, at the direction of the Treasurer of the University, to the fiscal agency or agencies 

of the State of Washington, sums sufficient to pay, when due, the payments specified in of 

Section 8 of this Series Resolution.  All such sums shall be paid from the moneys and Acquired 

Obligations deposited with said Escrow Agent pursuant to the previous section of this 

Series Resolution, and the income therefrom and proceeds thereof.  All moneys and Acquired 

Obligations deposited with said bank and any income therefrom shall be held, invested (but only 

at the direction of the Treasurer) and applied in accordance with the provisions of this 

Series Resolution and with the laws of the State of Washington for the benefit of the University 

and owners of the Refunded Bonds. 

 The University will take such actions as are found necessary to see that all necessary and 

proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Escrow Agent for the Refunded Bonds shall be 

paid when due. 



 

 -33- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 In order to carry out the purposes of the preceding section, the Treasurer of the 

University is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Escrow Agent, an Escrow 

Agreement and a Costs of Issuance Agreement, each substantially in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively. 

 Section 10. Defeasance.  In the event that money and/or Government Obligations 

maturing or having guaranteed redemption prices at the option of the owner at such time or times 

and bearing interest to be earned thereon in amounts (together with such money, if any) 

sufficient to redeem and retire part or all of the Series 2015 Bonds in accordance with their 

terms, are hereafter irrevocably set aside in a special account and pledged to effect such 

redemption and retirement, then no further payments need be made into the Series 2015 Bond 

Fund or any account therein for the payment of the principal of and interest on the certain Series 

2015 Bonds so provided for, and such Series 2015 Bonds shall then cease to be entitled to any 

lien, benefit or security of the Master Resolution and this Series Resolution, except the right to 

receive the funds so set aside and pledged and notices of early redemption, if any, and such 

Series 2015 Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding hereunder, or under any 

resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds or other indebtedness of the University. 

 Section 11. Tax Covenants.   

 (a) Arbitrage Covenant.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 

University covenants that it will not take any action or fail to take any action with respect to the 

proceeds of sale of the Series 2015 Bonds or any other funds of the University which may be 

deemed to be proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds pursuant to Section 148 of the Code and the 

regulations promulgated thereunder which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date 

of delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds to the initial purchasers thereof, would have caused the 



 

 -34- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Series 2015 Bonds as “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of such term as used in Section 148 

of the Code. 

 The University represents that it has not been notified of any listing or proposed listing 

by the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that it is an issuer whose arbitrage certifications 

may not be relied upon.  The University will comply with the requirements of Section 148 of the 

Code and the applicable regulations thereunder throughout the term of the Series 2015 Bonds. 

 (b) Private Person Use Limitation for Series 2015 Bonds.  The University covenants 

that for as long as the Series 2015 Bonds are Outstanding, it will not permit: 

 (1) More than 10% of the Net Proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds to be used 

for any Private Person Use; and 

 (2) More than 10% of the principal or interest payments on the Series  2015 

Bonds in a Bond Year to be directly or indirectly:  (A) secured by any interest in property used 

or to be used for any Private Person Use or secured by payments in respect of property used or to 

be used for any Private Person Use, or (B) derived from payments (whether or not made to the 

University) in respect of property, or borrowed money, used or to be used for any Private Person 

Use. 

 The University further covenants that, if: 

 (3) More than five percent of the Net Proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds are 

to be used for any Private Person Use; and 

 (4) More than five percent of the principal or interest payments on the 

Series 2015 Bonds in a Bond Year are (under the terms of this Series Resolution or any 

underlying arrangement) directly or indirectly:  (A) secured by any interest in property used or to 

be used for any Private Person Use or secured by payments in respect of property used or to be 



 

 -35- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

used for any Private Person Use, or (B) derived from payments (whether or not made to the 

University) in respect of property, or borrowed money, used or to be used for any Private Person 

Use, then, (i) any Private Person Use of the projects described in subsection (3) hereof or Private 

Person Use payments described in subsection (4) hereof that is in excess of the five percent 

limitations described in such subsections (3) or (4) will be for a Private Person Use that is related 

to the state or local governmental use of the Projects, and (ii) any Private Person Use will not 

exceed the amount of Net Proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds used for the state or local 

governmental use portion of the project to which the Private Person Use of such portion of the 

Projects relates.  The University further covenants that it will comply with any limitations on the 

use of the projects by other than state and local governmental users that are necessary, in the 

opinion of its bond counsel, to preserve the tax exemption of the interest on the Series 2015 

Bonds.  The covenants of this section are specified solely to assure the continued exemption 

from regular income taxation of the interest on the Series 2015 Bonds.   



 

 -36- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 12. Form of Series 2015 Bonds and Registration Certificate.  The Series 2015 

Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

 
STATEMENT OF INSURANCE, if any 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

NO. ______ $__________ 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 

HOUSING AND DINING SYSTEM 

REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2015  
 
Maturity Date:         CUSIP No. 

Interest Rate: 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 

Principal Amount: 
 
 WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY, a regional university organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Washington (the “University”), promises 
to pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date 
identified above, solely from the special fund of the University known as the “Western 
Washington University Housing and Dining System Revenue Bond Fund, 2015” (the “Series 
2015 Bond Fund”) created by Resolution No. 2014-09 of the Board of Trustees (together with 
Resolution No. 97-09, hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Bond Resolution”) the Principal 
Amount indicated above and to pay interest thereon from the Bond Fund from _____________, 
20__, or the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for or until 
payment of this bond at the Interest Rate set forth above, payable on __________ 1, 20__, and 
semiannually thereafter on the first days of each ________ and ___________.  Both principal of 
and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America.  Interest 
shall be paid as provided in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations (the “Letter of 
Representations”) by the University to The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”).  Principal shall 
be paid as provided in the Letter of Representations to the Registered Owner or assigns upon 
presentation and surrender of this bond at the principal office of the fiscal agency of the State of 
Washington (the “Registrar”).  Capitalized terms used in this bond which are not specifically 
defined have the meanings given such terms in the Bond Resolution. 
 
 This bond is one of an issue of bonds of the University of like date, tenor and effect, 
except as number, amount, rate of interest and date of maturity and is issued pursuant to the 
Bond Resolution to refund certain outstanding revenue bonds of the University. 
 



 

 -37- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 The bonds of this issue are subject to redemption as stated in the Bond Purchase Contract 
or Approved Bid. 
 
 The bonds of this issue are not private activity bonds.  The bonds of this issue [have/ 
have not] been designated by the University as eligible investments for financial institutions 
under Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 The University hereby covenants and agrees with the owner and holder of this bond that 
it will keep and perform all the covenants of this bond and the Bond Resolution. 
 
 The University does hereby pledge and bind itself to set aside from such Gross Revenue 
of the System, and to pay into said Series 2015 Bond Fund [and the Series 2015 Reserve 
Account created therein] the various amounts required by the Bond Resolution to be paid into 
and maintained in said Fund [and Account], all within the times provided by said Bond 
Resolution. 
 
 Said amounts so pledged to be paid out of Gross Revenue into said Series 2015 Bond 
Fund and Series 2015 Bond Reserve Account are hereby declared to be a first and prior lien and 
charge upon the Gross Revenue, subject to the Operating Expenses of the System and equal in 
rank to the lien and charge upon such Gross Revenue of the amounts required to pay and secure 
the payment of the University’s Housing and Dining System Junior Lien Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, 1998 Series A, Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, 
Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006, Housing and Dining System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2009A (Tax-Exempt – Bank Qualified), Housing and Dining System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2009B (Taxable – Build America Bonds), Housing and Dining System Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 and any revenue bonds of the University hereafter issued on a 
parity with such bonds and the bonds of this issue.   
 
 The University has further bound itself to maintain all of its properties and facilities 
which contribute in some measure to such Gross Revenue in good repair, working order and 
condition, to operate the same in an efficient manner and at a reasonable cost, and to establish, 
maintain and collect rentals, rates and charges in the operation of the System for as long as any 
bonds of this issue are outstanding that will make available, for the payment of the principal 
thereof and interest thereon as the same shall become due, Net Revenues (as the same is defined 
in the Bond Resolution) in an amount equal to or greater than the Rate Covenant. 
 
 This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Bond Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall 
have been manually signed by or on behalf of the Registrar. 
 
 It is hereby certified and declared that this bond and the bonds of this issue are issued 
pursuant to and in strict compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington 
and resolutions of the University and that all acts, conditions and things required to be done 
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond have happened, been done and performed. 
 



 

 -38- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Western Washington University has caused this bond to be 
executed by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chair and Secretary of the Board of 
Trustees, and a facsimile corporate seal of the University to be imprinted hereon as of the ___ 
day of __________, 20__. 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 
 
By /s/       

Chair, Board of Trustees 
ATTEST: 
 

/s/      
Secretary, Board of Trustees 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
Date of Authentication: ____________________ 
 
 This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Bond Resolution and is 
one of the Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015  of Western 
Washington University, dated _____________, 2015. 
 

WASHINGTON STATE FISCAL 
AGENCY, Registrar 
 
 
By        

Authorized Signer 
 
 Section 13. Execution.  The Series 2015 Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the 

University with the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair of its Board, shall be attested by 

the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board and shall have the seal of the 

University impressed or a facsimile thereof imprinted thereon. 

 Only such Series 2015 Bonds as shall bear thereon a Certificate of Authentication in the 

form hereinbefore recited, manually executed by the Registrar, shall be valid or obligatory for 

any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this Series Resolution.  Such Certificate of 

Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the Series 2015 Bonds so authenticated have 



 

 -39- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

been duly executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled to the benefits of this 

Series Resolution. 

 In case either of the officers of the University who shall have executed the Series 2015 

Bonds shall cease to be such officer or officers of the University before the Series 2015 Bonds so 

signed shall have been authenticated or delivered by the Registrar, or issued by the University, 

such Series 2015 Bonds may nevertheless be authenticated, delivered and issued and upon such 

authentication, delivery and issuance, shall be as binding upon the University as though those 

who signed the same had continued to be such officers of the University.  Any Series 2015 Bond 

may also be signed and attested on behalf of the University by such persons as at the actual date 

of execution of such Series 2015 Bond shall be the proper officers of the University although at 

the original date of such Series 2015 Bond any such person shall not have been such officer. 

 Section 14. Defaults and Remedies.  The University hereby finds and determines that 

the failure or refusal of the University or any of its officers to perform the covenants and 

obligations of this Series Resolution will endanger the operation of the System and the 

application of Gross Revenue and such other moneys, funds and securities to the purposes herein 

set forth.  Any one or more of the following shall constitute a Default under this Series 

Resolution: 

 (a) The University shall fail to make payment of the principal of any Series 2015 

Bonds when the same shall become due and payable whether by maturity or scheduled 

redemption prior to maturity; 

 (b) The University shall fail to make payments of any installment of interest on any 

Series 2015 Bonds when the same shall become due and payable; or 



 

 -40- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 (c) The University shall default in the observance or performance of any other 

covenants, conditions, or agreements on the part of the University contained in this Series 

Resolution, and such default shall have continued for a period of 90 days. 

 Upon the occurrence and continuation of any Default, the Registered Owners of the 

Series 2015 Bonds shall be entitled to exercise the remedies specified in Section 20 of the Master 

Resolution. 

 The failure to observe any term of an ongoing disclosure agreement under the Rule shall 

not constitute a Default hereunder or under the Master Resolution. 

Section 15. Sale of Series 2015 Bonds.   

 (a) Refunded Bonds.  As outlined in the recitals to this resolution and in Section 8 of 

this resolution, certain principal maturities of the 2005 Bonds and the 2006 Bonds may be called 

for redemption prior to their scheduled maturities.  All or some of these bonds may be refunded 

and refinanced with the proceeds of a series of the Series 2015 Bonds authorized by this Series 

Resolution.  The Designated University Representative may select some or all of the Refunding 

Candidates and designate those Refunding Candidates as the “Refunded Bonds” if the net 

present value aggregate savings with respect to all Refunded Bonds to be realized as a result of 

the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, after payment of all costs of issuance), is at least equal to 

the Savings Target.  

 (b) Bond Sale.  The Board has determined that it would be in the best interest of the 

University to delegate to the Designated University Representative the authority to designate the 

Refunded Bonds by selection from the Refunding Candidates as described in subsection (a) 

above, approve the manner of sale of a series of the Series 2015 Bonds, approve the final interest 

rates, maturity dates, aggregate principal amount, principal amounts of each maturity of each 



 

 -41- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

series, redemption rights of each series and other terms and conditions of the Refunded Bonds.  

The Designated University Representative is hereby authorized to approve the manner of sale of 

each series, approve the final interest rates, maturity dates, aggregate principal amount, principal 

maturities and redemption rights for each series  for the Series 2015 Bonds in the manner 

provided hereafter so long as (i) the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2015 Bonds does 

not exceed $16,465,000; (ii) the true interest cost for a series of the Series 2015 Bonds (in the 

aggregate) does not exceed 3.0%; (iii) the net present value aggregate savings with respect to 

each the 2005 Refunded Bonds and the 2006 Refunded Bonds to be realized as a result of the 

refunding of such 2005 Refunded Bonds and 2006 Refunded Bonds, after payment of all costs of 

issuance), is at least equal to the Savings Target; and (iv) the Maximum Annual Debt Service on 

all Outstanding Bonds after the issuance of the Bonds shall not be greater than the Maximum 

Annual Debt Service if the Bonds were not to be issued. 

 In determining the final interest rates, maturity dates, aggregate principal amount, 

principal maturities and redemption rights of a series of the Series 2015 Bonds, the Designated 

University Representative, in consultation with University staff and the University’s financial 

advisor, shall take into account those factors that, in his/her judgment, will result in the lowest 

true interest cost of such series of the Series 2015 Bonds to their maturity, including, but not 

limited to current financial market conditions and current interest rates for obligations 

comparable in tenor and quality to the Series 2015 Bonds.   

 Initially, the Designated University Representative is hereby authorized to determine 

whether a series of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be sold by Negotiated Sale or by a Competitive 

Sale.  If a series of the Series 2015 Bonds are sold by Negotiated Sale, the Designated University 

Representative shall select one or more underwriting firms to underwrite the Series 2015 Bonds 



 

 -42- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

through a process of soliciting proposals for underwriting.  Upon the selection of one or more 

underwriters, the Designated University Representative shall negotiate the terms of sale for the 

Series 2015 Bonds, including the terms described in this section, in a contract of sale (the “Bond 

Purchase Contract”).  If a series of the Series 2015 Bonds are sold by Competitive Sale, sealed 

bids will be received by the Designated University Representative or the Competitive Sale will 

be undertaken by electronic means, in the manner and on such date and time as the Designated 

University Representative hereafter shall determine.  The Designated University Representative 

will approve the bid offering to purchase the Series 2015 Bonds at the lowest true interest cost to 

the University at such price as shall be determined at the time of sale by the Designated 

University Representative, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, on all the terms and 

conditions set out in the applicable Official Notice of Sale. 

 All bids submitted for the purchase of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be as set forth in the 

applicable Official Notice of Sale or otherwise as established by the Designated University 

Representative which will be furnished upon request made to the Designated University 

Representative.  Such bids shall be accompanied by surety bond or a cashier’s or certified check, 

as a good faith deposit, made payable to the order of the University, in an amount determined by 

the University’s financial advisor.  The good faith deposit of the successful bidder shall be 

security for the performance of its bid and shall be held as liquidated damages in case the 

successful bidder fails to take up and pay for the Series 2015 Bonds within 45 days if tendered 

for delivery.  All bids submitted shall be opened (but not read publicly) by the University.  The 

University reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularity or 

informality in any bid. 



 

 -43- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 15, the Designated University 

Representative is hereby authorized to accept an Approved Bid in a Competitive Sale and/or 

execute the final form of a Bond Purchase Contract in a Negotiated Sale, upon his/her approval 

of the final interest rates, maturity dates, aggregate principal amounts, principal maturities and 

redemption rights set forth therein.  Following the sale of a series of the Series 2015 Bonds, the 

Designated University Representative shall provide a report to the Board, describing the final 

terms of such series of the Series 2015 Bonds approved pursuant to the authority delegated in 

this section.  

 The authority granted to the Designated University Representative by this Section shall 

remain in effect until December 1, 2015.  If the sale for the Series 2015 Bonds has not been 

completed by December 1, 2015, the authorization for the issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds 

shall be rescinded, and the Series 2015 Bonds shall not be issued nor their sale approved unless 

such Series 2015 Bonds shall have been re-authorized by resolution of the University.  The 

resolution re-authorizing the issuance and sale of such Series 2015 Bonds may be in the form of 

a new resolution repealing this resolution in whole or in part or may be in the form of an 

amendatory resolution establishing terms and conditions for the authority delegated under this 

Section. 

 The Designated University Representative or his/her designee are hereby authorized to 

review and approve on behalf of the University the preliminary and final Official Statements 

relative to each series of the Series 2015 Bonds with such additions and changes as may be 

deemed necessary or advisable to them.  The Designated University Representative is hereby 

further authorized to deem final the Preliminary Official Statement for the Series 2015 Bonds for 

purposes of compliance with the Rule. 



 

 -44- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Upon the adoption of this Series Resolution, the proper officials of the University 

including the Designated University Representative, are authorized and directed to undertake all 

other actions necessary for the prompt sale, execution and delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds and 

further to execute all closing certificates and documents required to effect the closing and 

delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Official Notice of Sale, 

Approved Bid and/or Bond Purchase Contract.  In furtherance of the foregoing, the Designated 

University Representative is authorized to approve and enter into agreements for the payment of 

costs of issuance, including Underwriter’s discount, the fees and expenses specified in the 

Purchase Contract, including fees and expenses of Underwriter and other retained services, 

including Bond Counsel, rating agencies, fiscal agency, and other expenses customarily incurred 

in connection with issuance and sale of bonds.  The disbursement of Bond proceeds to pay 

certain costs of issuance shall be made by the Escrow Agent under the terms set forth in the 

Costs of Issuance Agreement.   

 Section 16. Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure.  The Designated University 

Representative is authorized to, in his/her discretion, execute and deliver a certificate regarding 

continuing disclosure in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Section (b)(5) of the 

Rule.   

 Section 17. Bond Insurance; Surety Bond.   

 (a) Bond Insurance.  The payments of the principal of and interest on a series of the 

Series 2015 Bonds may be insured by the issuance of the Bond Insurance Policy.  The 

Designated University Representative, with the assistance of the University’s financial advisor, 

is hereby further authorized and directed to solicit proposals from municipal bond insurance 

companies for the issuance of a Bond Insurance Policy.  In the event that the Designated 



 

 -45- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

University Representative receives multiple proposals, the Designated University Representative 

may select the proposal having the lowest cost and resulting in an overall lower interest cost with 

respect to the Series 2015 Bonds.  The Designated University Representative may execute a 

commitment received from the Insurer selected by the Designated University Representative.  

The Board further authorizes and directs all proper officers, agents, attorneys and employees of 

the University to cooperate with the Insurer in preparing such additional agreements, certificates, 

and other documentation on behalf of the University as shall be necessary or advisable in 

providing for the Bond Insurance Policy.  To the extent that a series of the Series 2015 Bonds are 

insured by a Bond Insurance Policy, the Insurer of each maturity of the Series 2015 Bonds so 

insured shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner of such Series 2015 Bonds for all purposes, 

including consent, under this Series Resolution and the Master Resolution. 

(b) Surety Bond.  The guaranteeing of certain payments into the Series 2015 Reserve 

Account may be secured by a surety bond (the “Surety Bond”).  The Designated University 

Representative, with the assistance of the University’s financial advisor, is hereby further 

authorized and directed to solicit proposals from municipal bond insurance companies for the 

issuance of a Surety Bond (the “Surety Bond Provider”).  In the event that the Designated 

University Representative receives multiple proposals, the Designated University Representative 

may select the proposal having the lowest cost and resulting in an overall lower interest cost with 

respect to the Series 2015 Bonds.  The Designated University Representative may execute a 

commitment received from the Surety Bond Provider selected by the Designated University 

Representative.  The Board further authorizes and directs all proper officers, agents, attorneys 

and employees of the University to cooperate with the Surety Bond Provider in preparing such 



 

 -46- P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

additional agreements, certificates, and other documentation on behalf of the University as shall 

be necessary or advisable in providing for the Surety Bond.   

 Section 18. Severability.  If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided 

in this Series Resolution to be performed on the part of the University shall be declared by any 

court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or covenants, 

agreement or agreements, shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the 

remaining covenants and agreements in this Series Resolution and shall in no way affect the 

validity of the other provisions of this Series Resolution or of any Series 2015 Bonds. 

 Section 19. Effective Date.  This Series Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon its adoption. 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 

University, at a regular meeting held this 11th day of December, 2014. 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 
 
       

Chair, Board of Trustees 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Secretary of the Board 



 

 A-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF ESCROW AGREEMENT 
 

E S C R O W  D E P O S I T  A G R E E M E N T  
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
HOUSING AND DINING SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015 

 
 THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT, dated as of ____________, 2015 (herein, together 
with any amendments or supplements hereto, called the “Agreement”) is entered into by and 
between Western Washington University (herein called the “University”) and 
____________________________, ___________, ____________ as escrow agent (herein, 
together with any successor in such capacity, called the “Escrow Agent”).  The notice addresses 
of the University and the Escrow Agent are shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 
 WHEREAS, the University has issued and there presently remain outstanding the 
obligations described in Exhibit B (the “Refunded Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2014-09, adopted on December 11, 2014 (the 
“Series Resolution”), the University has determined to issue its Western Washington University 
Housing and Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015  (the “Refunding Bonds”).  
A portion of the Refunding Bonds are being used for the purpose of providing funds to pay the 
costs of refunding the Refunded Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Escrow Agent has reviewed this Agreement, and is willing to serve as 
Escrow Agent; and. 
 
 WHEREAS, __________________________, Certified Public Accountants, of 
_______, __________, have prepared a verification report which is dated ____________, 20__ 
(the “Verification Report”) relating to the source and use of funds available to accomplish the 
refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the investment of such funds and the adequacy of such funds 
and investments to provide for the payment of the debt service due on the Refunded Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Series Resolution, the Refunded Bonds have been 
designated for redemption prior to their scheduled maturity dates and, after provision is made for 
such redemption, the Refunded Bonds will come due in such years, bear interest at such rates, 
and be payable at such times and in such amounts as are set forth in Exhibit C; and 
 
 WHEREAS, when Escrowed Securities have been deposited with the Escrow Agent for 
the payment of all principal and interest of the Refunded Bonds when due, then the Refunded 



 

 A-2 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Bonds shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the purpose of receiving payment 
from the funds provided for such purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Refunding Bonds have been duly authorized to be issued, sold, and 
delivered for the purpose of obtaining the funds required to provide for the payment of the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premium (if any) on the Refunded Bonds when due as 
shown on Exhibit C; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the University desires that, concurrently with the delivery of the Refunding 
Bonds to the purchasers, the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds, together with certain other 
available funds of the University, shall be applied to purchase certain direct obligations of the 
United States of America hereinafter defined as the “Escrowed Securities” for deposit to the 
credit of the Escrow Fund and to establish a beginning cash balance (if needed) in the Escrow 
Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Escrowed Securities shall mature and the interest thereon shall be 
payable at such times and in such amounts so as to provide money which, together with cash 
balances from time to time on deposit in the Escrow Fund, will be sufficient to pay interest on 
the Refunded Bonds as it accrues and becomes payable and the principal of the Refunded Bonds 
as it becomes due and payable; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the receipt and transfer of proceeds of the Escrowed Securities, 
particularly those in book entry form, the University desires to establish the Escrow Fund at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Escrow Agent; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Escrow Agent is a party to this Agreement to acknowledge its 
acceptance of the terms and provisions hereof; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings, promises and 
agreements herein contained, the sufficiency of which hereby are acknowledged, and to secure 
the full and timely payment of principal of and the interest on the Refunded Bonds, the 
University and the Escrow Agent mutually undertake, promise and agree for themselves and 
their respective representatives and successors, as follows: 
 

Article 1. 
 
 Section 1.1.  Definitions. 
 
 Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following terms shall have the 
meanings assigned to them below when they are used in this Agreement: 
 
 Acquired Obligations means the Government Obligations acquired by the University 
under the terms of the resolution and this Escrow Agreement to effect the defeasance and 
refunding of the Refunded Bonds. 



 

 A-3 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 
 Escrow Fund means the fund created by this Agreement to be established, held and 
administered by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 Escrowed Securities means the noncallable Government Obligations described in 
Exhibit D, or cash or other noncallable obligations substituted therefor pursuant to Section 4.2 of 
this Agreement. 
 
 Government Obligations means direct, noncallable (a) United States Treasury 
Obligations, (b) United States Treasury Obligations — State and Local Government Series, 
(c) non-prepayable obligations which are unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely 
payment of principal and interest by the United States of America or (d) REFCORP debt 
obligations unconditionally guaranteed by the United States. 
 
 Paying Agent means the fiscal agency of the State of Washington, as the paying agent for 
the Refunded Bonds. 
 
 Section 1.2.  Other Definitions. 
 
 The terms “Agreement,” “University,” “Escrow Agent,” “Series Resolution,” 
“Verification Report,” “Refunded Bonds,” and “Refunding Bonds” when they are used in this 
Agreement, shall have the meanings assigned to them in the preamble to this Agreement. 
 
 Section 1.3.  Interpretations. 
 
 The titles and headings of the articles and sections of this Agreement have been inserted 
for convenience and reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and shall not in 
any way modify or restrict the terms hereof.  This Agreement and all of the terms and provisions 
hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein and to achieve the 
intended purpose of providing for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds in accordance with 
applicable law. 
 

Article 2.  Deposit of Funds and Escrowed Securities 
 
 Section 2.1.  Deposits in the Escrow Fund. 
 
 Concurrently with the sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds the University shall 
deposit, or cause to be deposited, with the Escrow Agent, for deposit in the Escrow Fund, the 
funds sufficient to purchase the Escrowed Securities [and pay costs of issuance] described in 
Exhibit D, and the Escrow Agent shall, upon the receipt thereof, acknowledge such receipt to the 
University in writing. 
 

Article 3.  Creation and Operation of Escrow Fund 
 



 

 A-4 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 3.1.  Escrow Fund. 
 
 The Escrow Agent has created on its books a special trust fund and irrevocable escrow to 
be known as the Escrow Fund (the “Escrow Fund”).  The Escrow Agent agrees that upon receipt 
it will deposit to the credit of the Escrow Fund the funds and the Escrowed Securities described 
in Exhibit D.  Such deposit, all proceeds therefrom, and all cash balances on deposit therein 
(a) shall be the property of the Escrow Fund, (b) shall be applied only in strict conformity with 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and (c) are hereby irrevocably pledged to the 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds, which payment shall be made 
by timely transfers of such amounts at such times as are provided for in Section 3.2.  When the 
final transfers have been made for the payment of such principal of and interest on the Refunded 
Bonds, any balance then remaining in the Escrow Fund shall be transferred to the University, 
and the Escrow Agent shall thereupon be discharged from any further duties hereunder. 
 
 Section 3.2.  Payment of Principal and Interest. 
 
 The Escrow Agent is hereby irrevocably instructed to transfer to the Paying Agent from 
the cash balances on deposit in the Escrow Fund, the amounts required to pay the principal of the 
Refunded Bonds at their respective redemption dates and interest thereon to such redemption 
dates in the amounts and at the times shown in Exhibit C. 
 
 Section 3.3.  Sufficiency of Escrow Fund. 
 
 The University represents that, based upon the information provided in the Verification 
Report, the successive receipts of the principal of and interest on the Escrowed Securities will 
assure that the cash balance on deposit in the Escrow Fund will be at all times sufficient to 
provide money for transfer to the Paying Agent at the times and in the amounts required to pay 
the interest on the Refunded Bonds as such interest comes due and the principal of the Refunded 
Bonds as the Refunded Bonds are paid on an optional redemption date prior to maturity, all as 
more fully set forth in Exhibit E.  If, for any reason, at any time, the cash balances on deposit or 
scheduled to be on deposit in the Escrow Fund shall be insufficient to transfer the amounts 
required by the Paying Agent to make the payments set forth in Section 3.2., the University shall 
timely deposit in the Escrow Fund, from any funds that are lawfully available therefor, additional 
funds in the amounts required to make such payments.  Notice of any such insufficiency shall be 
given promptly as hereinafter provided, but the Escrow Agent shall not in any manner be 
responsible for any insufficiency of funds in the Escrow Fund or the University’s failure to make 
additional deposits. 
 
 Section 3.4.  Trust Fund. 
 
 The Escrow Agent shall hold at all times the Escrow Fund, the Escrowed Securities and 
all other assets of the Escrow Fund, wholly segregated from all other funds and securities on 
deposit with the Escrow Agent; it shall never allow the Escrowed Securities or any other assets 
of the Escrow Fund to be commingled with any other funds or securities of the Escrow Agent; 



 

 A-5 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

and it shall hold and dispose of the assets of the Escrow Fund only as set forth herein.  The 
Escrowed Securities and other assets of the Escrow Fund shall always be maintained by the 
Escrow Agent as trust funds for the benefit of the owners of the Refunded Bonds; and a special 
account shall at all times be maintained on the books of the Escrow Agent.  The owners of the 
Refunded Bonds shall be entitled to the same preferred claim and first lien upon the Escrowed 
Securities, the proceeds thereof, and all other assets of the Escrow Fund to which they are 
entitled as owners of the Refunded Bonds.  The amounts received by the Escrow Agent under 
this Agreement shall not be considered as a banking deposit by the University, and the Escrow 
Agent shall have no right to title with respect thereto except as a trustee and Escrow Agent under 
the terms of this Agreement.  The amounts received by the Escrow Agent under this Agreement 
shall not be subject to warrants, drafts or checks drawn by the University or, except to the extent 
expressly herein provided, by the Paying Agent. 
 

Article 4.  Limitation on Investments 
 
 Section 4.1.  Investments. 
 
 Except for the initial investment in the Escrowed Securities, and except as provided in 
Section 4.2, the Escrow Agent shall not have any power or duty to invest or reinvest any money 
held hereunder, or to make substitutions of the Escrowed Securities, or to sell, transfer, or 
otherwise dispose of the Escrowed Securities. 
 
 Section 4.2.  Substitution of Securities. 
 
 At the written request of the University, and upon compliance with the conditions 
hereinafter stated, the Escrow Agent shall utilize cash balances in the Escrow Fund, or sell, 
transfer, otherwise dispose of or request the redemption of the Escrowed Securities and apply the 
proceeds therefrom to purchase Government Obligations which do not permit the redemption 
thereof at the option of the obligor.  Any such transaction may be effected by the Escrow Agent 
only if (a) the Escrow Agent shall have received a written verification from a firm of certified 
public accountants that such transaction will not cause the amount of money and securities in the 
Escrow Fund to be reduced below an amount sufficient to provide for the full and timely 
payment of principal of and interest on all of the remaining Refunded Bonds as they become due, 
taking into account any optional redemption thereof exercised by the University in connection 
with such transaction; and (b) the Escrow Agent shall have received the unqualified written legal 
opinion of its bond counsel or tax counsel to the effect that such transaction will not cause any of 
the Refunding Bonds or Refunded Bonds to be an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of 
Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 



 

 A-6 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Article 5.  Application of Cash Balances 
 
 Section 5.1.  In General. 
 
 Except as provided in Sections 2.1, 3.2 and 4.2, no withdrawals, transfers or reinvestment 
shall be made of cash balances in the Escrow Fund.  Cash balances shall be held by the Escrow 
Agent in United States currency and shall not be reinvested by the Escrow Agent, except as 
directed or authorized herein. 
 

Article 6.  Redemption of Refunded Bonds 
 
 Section 6.1.  Call for Redemption. 
 
 The University hereby irrevocably calls the Refunded Bonds for redemption on their 
earliest redemption dates, as shown in the Verification Report and on Appendix A attached 
hereto. 
 
 Section 6.2.  Notice of Redemption/Notice of Defeasance. 
 
 The Escrow Agent agrees to give a notice of defeasance and a notice of the redemption of 
the Refunded Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Refunded Bonds and in substantially the forms 
attached as and as described in Appendices A and B to the Paying Agent for distribution as 
described therein.  The notice of defeasance shall be given immediately following the execution 
of this Agreement, and the notice of redemption shall be given in accordance with the ordinance 
or resolution authorizing the Refunded Bonds.  The Escrow Agent hereby certifies that provision 
satisfactory and acceptable to the Escrow Agent has been made for the giving of notice of 
redemption of the Refunded Bonds. 
 

Article 7.  Records and Reports 
 
 Section 7.1.  Records. 
 
 The Escrow Agent will keep books of record and account in which complete and accurate 
entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the receipts, disbursements, allocations and 
application of the money and Escrowed Securities deposited to the Escrow Fund and all proceeds 
thereof, and such books shall be available for inspection during business hours and after 
reasonable notice. 
 



 

 A-7 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 7.2.  Reports. 
 
 While this Agreement remains in effect, the Escrow Agent annually shall prepare and 
send to the University a written report summarizing all transactions relating to the Escrow Fund 
during the preceding year, including, without limitation, credits to the Escrow Fund as a result of 
interest payments on or maturities of the Escrowed Securities and transfers from the Escrow 
Fund for payments on the Refunded Bonds or otherwise, together with a detailed statement of all 
Escrowed Securities and the cash balance on deposit in the Escrow Fund as of the end of such 
period. 
 

Article 8.  Concerning the Paying Agent and Escrow Agent 
 

 Section 8.1.  Representations. 
 
 The Escrow Agent hereby represents that it has all necessary power and authority to enter 
into this Agreement and undertake the obligations and responsibilities imposed upon it herein, 
and that it will carry out all of its obligations hereunder. 
 
 Section 8.2.  Limitation on Liability. 
 
 The liability of the Escrow Agent to transfer funds for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Refunded Bonds shall be limited to the proceeds of the Escrowed Securities and 
the cash balances from time to time on deposit in the Escrow Fund.  Notwithstanding any 
provision contained herein to the contrary, the Escrow Agent shall have no liability whatsoever 
for the insufficiency of funds from time to time in the Escrow Fund or any failure of the obligors 
of the Escrowed Securities to make timely payment thereon, except for the obligation to notify 
the University promptly of any such occurrence. 
 
 The recitals herein and in the proceedings authorizing the Refunding Bonds shall be 
taken as the statements of the University and shall not be considered as made by, or imposing 
any obligation or liability upon, the Escrow Agent. 
 
 The Escrow Agent is not a party to the proceedings authorizing the Refunding Bonds or 
the Refunded Bonds and is not responsible for nor bound by any of the provisions thereof 
(except to the extent that the Escrow Agent may be a place of payment and paying agent and/or a 
paying agent/registrar therefor).  In its capacity as Escrow Agent, it is agreed that the Escrow 
Agent need look only to the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 The Escrow Agent makes no representations as to the value, conditions or sufficiency of 
the Escrow Fund, or any part thereof, or as to the title of the University thereto, or as to the 
security afforded thereby or hereby, and the Escrow Agent shall not incur any liability or 
responsibility in respect to any of such matters. 
 



 

 A-8 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 It is the intention of the parties that the Escrow Agent shall never be required to use or 
advance its own funds or otherwise incur personal financial liability in the performance of any of 
its duties or the exercise of any of its rights and powers hereunder. 
 
 The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or neglected to be taken by it in 
good faith in any exercise of reasonable care and believed by it to be within the discretion or 
power conferred upon it by this Agreement, nor shall the Escrow Agent be responsible for the 
consequences of any error of judgment; and the Escrow Agent shall not be answerable except for 
its own action, neglect or default, nor for any loss unless the same shall have been through its 
negligence or want of good faith. 
 
 Unless it is specifically otherwise provided herein, the Escrow Agent has no duty to 
determine or inquire into the happening or occurrence of any event or contingency or the 
performance or failure of performance of the University with respect to arrangements or 
contracts with others, with the Escrow Agent’s sole duty hereunder being to safeguard the 
Escrow Fund, to dispose of and deliver the same in accordance with this Agreement.  If, 
however, the Escrow Agent is called upon by the terms of this Agreement to determine the 
occurrence of any event or contingency, the Escrow Agent shall be obligated, in making such 
determination, only to exercise reasonable care and diligence, and in event of error in making 
such determination the Escrow Agent shall be liable only for its own misconduct or its 
negligence.  In determining the occurrence of any such event or contingency the Escrow Agent 
may request from the University or any other person such reasonable additional evidence as the 
Escrow Agent in its discretion may deem necessary to determine any fact relating to the 
occurrence of such event or contingency, and in this connection may make inquiries of, and 
consult with, among others, the University at any time. 
 
 Section 8.3.  Compensation. 
 
 The University shall pay to the Escrow Agent fees for performing the services hereunder 
and for the expenses incurred or to be incurred by the Escrow Agent in the administration of this 
Agreement pursuant to the terms of the Fee Schedule attached as Appendix C.  The Escrow 
Agent hereby agrees that in no event shall it ever assert any claim or lien against the Escrow 
Fund for any fees for its services, whether regular or extraordinary, as Escrow Agent, or in any 
other capacity, or for reimbursement for any of its expenses as Escrow Agent or in any other 
capacity. 
 



 

 A-9 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 8.4.  Successor Escrow Agents. 
 
 If at any time the Escrow Agent or its legal successor or successors should become 
unable, through operation or law or otherwise, to act as escrow agent hereunder, or if its property 
and affairs shall be taken under the control of any state or federal court or administrative body 
because of insolvency or bankruptcy or for any other reason, a vacancy shall forthwith exist in 
the office of Escrow Agent hereunder.  In such event the Western Washington University, by 
appropriate action, promptly shall appoint an Escrow Agent to fill such vacancy.  If no successor 
Escrow Agent shall have been appointed by the University within 60 days, a successor may be 
appointed by the owners of a majority in principal amount of the Refunded Bonds then 
outstanding by an instrument or instruments in writing filed with the University, signed by such 
owners or by their duly authorized attorneys-in-fact.  If, in a proper case, no appointment of a 
successor Escrow Agent shall be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this section within 
three months after a vacancy shall have occurred, the owner of any Refunded Bond may apply to 
any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor Escrow Agent.  Such court may 
thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper, prescribe and appoint a successor 
Escrow Agent. 
 
 Any successor Escrow Agent shall be a corporation organized and doing business under 
the laws of the United States or any state, authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust 
powers, having a combined capital and surplus of at least $100,000,000 and subject to the 
supervision or examination by federal or state authority. 
 
 Any successor Escrow Agent shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the University 
and the Escrow Agent an instrument accepting such appointment hereunder, and the Escrow 
Agent shall execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor Escrow Agent, 
subject to the terms of this Agreement, all the rights, powers and trusts of the Escrow Agent 
hereunder.  Upon the request of any such successor Escrow Agent, the University shall execute 
any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such 
successor Escrow Agent all such rights, powers and duties. 
 
 The obligations assumed by the Escrow Agent pursuant to this Agreement may be 
transferred by the Escrow Agent to a successor Escrow Agent if (a) the requirements of this 
Section 8.4 are satisfied; (b) the successor Escrow Agent has assumed all the obligations of the 
Escrow Agent under this Agreement; and (c) all of the Escrowed Securities and money held by 
the Escrow Agent pursuant to this Agreement have been duly transferred to such successor 
Escrow Agent. 
 



 

 A-10 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Article 9.  Miscellaneous 
 
 Section 9.1.  Notice. 
 
 Any notice, authorization, request, or demand required or permitted to be given 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when mailed by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid addressed to the University or the Escrow Agent at 
the address shown on Exhibit A attached hereto.  The United States Post Office registered or 
certified mail receipt showing delivery of the aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the date 
and fact of delivery.  Any party hereto may change the address to which notices are to be 
delivered by giving to the other parties not less than ten days prior notice thereof. 
 
 Section 9.2.  Termination of Responsibilities. 
 
 Upon the taking of all the actions as described herein by the Escrow Agent, the Escrow 
Agent shall have no further obligations or responsibilities hereunder to the University, the 
owners of the Refunded Bonds or to any other person or persons in connection with this 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 9.3.  Binding Agreement. 
 
 This Agreement shall be binding upon the University and the Escrow Agent and their 
respective successors and legal representatives, and shall inure solely to the benefit of the owners 
of the Refunded Bonds, the University, the Escrow Agent and their respective successors and 
legal representatives. 
 
 Section 9.4.  Severability. 
 
 In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this Agreement, but this Agreement shall 
be construed as if such invalid or illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. 
 
 Section 9.5.  Washington Law Governs. 
 
 This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by the provisions hereof and by the 
applicable laws of the State of Washington. 
 
 Section 9.6.  Time of the Essence. 
 
 Time shall be of the essence in the performance of obligations from time to time imposed 
upon the Escrow Agent by this Agreement. 
 



 

 A-11 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 Section 9.7.  Notice to Moody’s, Fitch and Standard &Poor’s.   
 
 In the event that this agreement or any provision thereof is severed, amended or revoked, 
the State shall provide written notice of such severance, amendment or revocation to Moody’s 
Investors Service at 7 World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New York, 
10007, Attention: Public Finance Rating Desk/ Refunded Bonds, Fitch Ratings at One State 
Street Plaza, New York, New York, 10004, Attention: Public Finance Rating Desk/Refunded 
Bonds and to Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041, 
Attention:  Municipal Bond Department. 
 
 Section 9.8.  Amendments. 
 
 This Agreement shall not be amended except to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or 
omission in this Agreement.  No amendment shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the parties thereto.  No such amendment shall adversely affect the rights of 
the holders of the Refunded Bonds.  No such amendment shall be made without first receiving 
written confirmation from the rating agencies, (if any) which have rated the Refunded Bonds that 
such amendment will not result in a withdrawal or reduction of its rating then assigned to the 
Refunded Bonds.  If this Agreement is amended, prior written notice and copies of the proposed 
changes shall be given to the rating agencies which have rated the Refunded Bonds. 



 

 A-12 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 
 EXECUTED as of the date first written above. 
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 
 
 
       
Title:         
 
 
[ESCROW AGENT] 
 
 
       
Title:         

 
Exhibit A — Addresses of the University and the Escrow Agent 
Exhibit B — Description of the Refunded Bonds 
Exhibit C — Schedule of Debt Service on Refunded Bonds 
Exhibit D — Description of Beginning Cash Deposit (if any) and Escrowed Securities 
Exhibit E — Escrow Fund Cash Flow 
Appendix A — Notice of Redemption 
Appendix B — Notice of Defeasance 
Appendix C — Fee Schedule 



 

 A-A-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT A 
Addresses of the University and Escrow Agent 

 
 
 
University:  Western Washington University  

516 High Street 
Bellingham, Washington 98225 
Attention:  Vice President, Business and Financial Affairs 

 
Escrow Agent: ________________________ 

________________________ 
________________________ 

   Attention:  Corporate Trust Services 
 



 

 A-B-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT B 
Description of the Refunded Bonds 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 A-C-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT C 
Schedule of Debt Service on Refunded Bonds 

 
 
 

 
Date 

 
Interest 

Principal/ 
Redemption Price 

 
Total 

[Month, Date, Year]  $   $   $[Total Amount] 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
          
Total  $[Total Amount]  $[Total Amount]  $[Total Amount] 
 



 

 A-D-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT D 
Escrow Deposit 

 
 
I. Cash: $_______ 
 
II. Other Obligations 
 

 
Description 

 
Maturity Date 

Principal 
Amount 

 
Interest Rate 

 
Total Cost 

[SLG, TNOTE] [Month, Date, Year]  $         [Rate]%  $ * 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
    __________                     
  $[Total Amount]   $[Total Amount] 
     

 
III. Costs of Issuance [as applicable] 

 
Escrow Agent Fee (____________________________) $  
Bond Counsel Fee (PGE)   
Escrow Verification Fee ([Escrow Verification])   
OS Printing and Mailing Costs (__________________)   
Rating Agency ([Rating Agency(ies)])  ________ 
 
TOTAL: $               

 



 

 A-E-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT E 
Escrow Fund Cash Flow 

 
 

Date 
Escrow 

Requirement 
 

Net Escrow Receipts 
Excess 

Receipts 
 

Cash Balance 

[Month, Date, Year]  $   $   $   $ 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
           
  $[Total Amount]  $[Total Amount]   
     

 
 



 

Page 1 - Appendix A  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

APPENDIX A 
Notice of Redemption* 

Western Washington University 
Housing and Dining System Revenue [and Refunding] Bonds, Series 20__ 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the University has called for redemption on 
__________, 20__, its then outstanding Housing and Dining System Revenue [and Refunding] 
Bonds, Series 20__ (the “Bonds”). 
 
 The Bonds will be redeemed at a price of 100% of their principal amount, plus interest 
accrued to __________, 20__.  The redemption price of the Bonds is payable on presentation and 
surrender of the Bonds at the office of: 
 

The Bank of New York Mellon 
Worldwide Securities Processing  
2001 Bryan Street, 9th Floor 
Dallas, TX  75201 

 
 

-or- 

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association 
Corporate Trust Department 
14th Floor 
999 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA  98104 

 
 Interest on all Bonds or portions thereof which are redeemed shall cease to accrue on 
_________, 20__. 
 
 The following Bonds are being redeemed: 
 

Maturity Years 
(______ 1) 

 
Principal Amounts 

 
Interest Rates 

CUSIP 
Nos. 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
By Order of Western Washington University 
 
                                                 
* This notice shall be given not more than 60 nor less than 30 days prior to _______, 20__ by first class mail to each 
registered owner of the Refunded Bonds.  In addition notice shall be mailed at least 30 days prior to _______, 20__ 
to The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York; ______________, _________________, Moody’s 
Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services; and to the MSRB.   



 

Page 2 - Appendix A  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

The Bank of New York Mellon, as Paying Agent 
 
Dated:       . 
 
 Withholding of 28% of gross redemption proceeds of any payment made within the 
United States may be required by the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003 
(the “Act”) unless the Paying Agent has the correct taxpayer identification number (social 
security or employer identification number) or exemption certificate of the payee.  Please furnish 
a properly completed Form W-9 or exemption certificate or equivalent when presenting your 
Bonds.   
 



 

Page 1 - Appendix B  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

APPENDIX B 
Notice of Defeasance* 

Western Washington University 
Housing and Dining System Revenue [and Refunding Bonds], Series 20__ 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to the owners of that portion of the above captioned bonds 
with respect to which, pursuant to an Escrow Agreement dated _________, 20__, by and 
between Western Washington University (the “University”) and 
____________________________ (the “Escrow Agent”), the University has deposited into an 
escrow account, held by the Escrow Agent, cash and non-callable direct obligations of the 
United States of America, the principal of and interest on which, when due, will provide money 
to pay each year, to and including the respective maturity or redemption dates of such bonds so 
provided for, the principal thereof and interest thereon (the “Defeased Bonds”).  Such Defeased 
Bonds are therefore deemed to be no longer outstanding pursuant to Resolution No. ________ of 
the University authorizing the Defeased Bonds, but will be paid by application of the assets in 
such escrow. 
 
 The Defeased Bonds are described as follows: 
 

Western Washington University 
Housing and Dining System Revenue [and Refunding Bonds], Series 20__ 

 
(Dated ________, 20__) 

 
Maturity Years 

(_______ 1) 
Par Amounts 

Defeased 
 

Interest Rates 
CUSIP 
Nos. 

Call Date 
(@100%) 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
 

                                                 
*  This notice shall be given immediately by first class mail to each registered owner of the Defeased Bonds and to 
the MSRB. 
 



 

Page 2 - Appendix B  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

Bond Numbers of  20__ Defeased Bonds 
 

Information for Individual Registered Owner 
 
 The addressee of this notice is the registered owner of Bond Certificate No. _____ of the 
Defeased Bonds described above, which certificate is in the principal amount of $_________.  
Of that principal amount, $__________ has been defeased as described above.   
 
 [Date] 
 
 ____________________________, as Escrow Agent 
 



 

Page 1 - Appendix C  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

APPENDIX C 
Fee Schedule 

 
Escrow Agent Fee:  $___________ 
 



 

 -1- CMW2PB.DOC 14/12/02 

EXHIBIT B 
 

C O S T S  O F  I S S U A N C E  A G R E E M E N T  
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
HOUSING AND DINING SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015 

 
 
 THIS COSTS OF ISSUANCE AGREEMENT, dated as of ________, 2015 (herein, 
together with any amendments or supplements hereto, called the “Agreement”), is entered into 
by and between the WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY, (herein called the 
“University”) and __________________________________________ as Escrow Agent (herein, 
together with any successor in such capacity, called the “Escrow Agent”).   
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2014-09 of the University, adopted on 
December 11, 2014 (the “Resolution”), the University has determined to issue its Housing and 
Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (the “Series 2015 Bonds”) for the 
purpose of providing funds to pay the costs of refunding certain outstanding bonds of the 
University; and 
 
 WHEREAS, simultaneously herewith, the University is entering into an Escrow Deposit 
Agreement, dated ____________, 2015 under which the Escrow Agent will hold invested 
proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds in order to pay and redeem the refunded bonds under the 
terms set forth therein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, certain proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds will be delivered to the Escrow 
Agent on the date of issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds that are required to be disbursed to pay 
costs of issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Escrow Agent has agreed, without additional compensation to disburse 
the Series 2015 Bond proceeds received to pay costs of issuance under the terms of this 
Agreement; 
 
 Section 1.  Deposit in the Costs of Issuance Fund. 
 
 The Escrow Agent has created on its books a special trust fund and escrow fund to be 
known as the Costs of Issuance Fund.  The Escrow Agent agrees that upon receipt it will deposit 
to the credit of the Costs of Issuance Fund Account the sum of $__________ to pay those costs 
of issuance set forth on Exhibit A.  Such deposit, all proceeds therefrom, and all cash balances 
on deposit therein shall be the property of the Costs of Issuance Fund to pay those costs of 
issuance set forth on Exhibit A upon receipt of invoices.  If any of the $___________ deposit 
allocated for costs of issuance for the Series 2015 Bonds remains unspent on ___________, 



 

Page 2 - Exhibit B  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

20__, the Escrow Agent shall transfer such unspent amount to the University, and this 
Agreement shall be deemed fully performed and terminated. 
 

Section 2  Investments. 
 
 The Escrow Agent shall not have any power or duty to invest or reinvest any money held 
hereunder. 
 
 Section 3  Limitation on Liability. 
 
 The liability of the Escrow Agent to transfer funds for the payment of the costs of 
issuance identified herein shall be limited to the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds delivered to 
the Escrow Agent. 
 
 Section 4  Compensation. 
 
 The University shall pay to the Escrow Agent fees for performing the services hereunder 
and under the Escrow Agreement for the expenses incurred or to be incurred by the Escrow 
Agent in the administration of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement pursuant to the terms 
of the Fee Schedule attached as Exhibit B.  The Escrow Agent hereby agrees that in no event 
shall it ever assert any claim or lien against funds held under the Escrow Agreement for any fees 
for its services, whether regular or extraordinary, as Escrow Agent, or in any other capacity, or 
for reimbursement for any of its expenses as Escrow Agent or in any other capacity. 
 
 Section 5  Notice. 
 
 Any notice, authorization, request, or demand required or permitted to be given 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when mailed by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid addressed to the University or the Escrow Agent at 
the address shown on Exhibit A to the Escrow Agreement. 
 
 Section 6  Washington Law Governs. 
 
 This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by the provisions hereof and by the 
applicable laws of the state of Washington. 
 



 

Page 3 - Exhibit B  P:\20287_CMW\20287_A0I 12/02/14 

 EXECUTED as of the date first written above. 
 

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 

 
       

_________________________ 
 

[ESCROW AGENT] 

 

 
       

Authorized Signatory 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit A - Costs of Issuance Schedule 
Exhibit B - Fee Schedule 



 

 B-A-1 P:\20287_CMW\20287_AJ9 12/02/14 

EXHIBIT A 
Costs of Issuance: 
 

Bond Counsel Fee (K&L Gates LLP) .................  

Escrow Agent Fee (__________)........................   

Escrow Verification (__________) .....................  

Rating Agency Fee (_________) ........................    

 Total: ..............................................................  $  

 
 



 

   

EXHIBIT B 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

See Attached 
 
 



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 

 
TO:  Members of the Board of Trustees  
 
FROM: President Bruce Shepard by Provost Brent Carbajal 
 
DATE:  December 11, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: THE GLOBALLY ENGAGED UNIVERSITY, JOINT SESSION WITH 

FOUNDATION BOARD 
  Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement  
 
PURPOSE: Discussion Item 
 
 
 
Purpose of Submittal: 
 
How is WWU going to play in a future where leading universities, of necessity, are 
globally engaged universities? 
 
The preceding was one of the “Six Questions” that President Shepard posed to the 
Western community at the 2013 Convocation.  We would like to call upon the collective 
wisdom of the Board of Trustees and the Foundation Board as we continue to strategize, 
plan, and implement our institutional “global engagement.”   
 
In order to get things started we present a few questions below.  Our goal, however, is to 
have a conversation with the boards that will allow for exploration of any number of 
topics – related directly or indirectly to global engagement - that might emerge.   Toward 
that end and for informational purposes, we’ve included below the questions a couple of 
sample responses submitted to the “Six Questions” survey last year. 
 
Questions: 
 
1. Is it important that Western be globally engaged?  Why, or why not? 
 
2. What are the most important elements of international programming at a 
university?  We typically think of partnerships with universities abroad and student/ 
faculty exchanges comprising a significant component of international programming, but 
what rising to the top in terms of impact? 
 
3. Should international fundraising be a part of what we do?  If so, what could that 
look like?  For example, the fundraising could provide support to help students and 
faculty work and study abroad, and the support could come from alumni, foundations, 
and corporations that  are based or do business overseas, etc.  What are other ideas? 
 
4. What are the connections to be drawn between being globally engaged and being 
an institution that lives the expression “active minds changing lives?” 
 



5. How do we leverage global engagement?  For example, how might global 
engagement assist us in working toward addressing major issues such as climate 
change? 
 
“Six Questions” Sample Response #1 –  
If WWU really wants to be a leading university then it must be globally engaged, but 
what does that mean? Do we simply address the current deficiencies in the numbers of 
international students and international partnerships in order to become more like the 
‘average’ US institution? Do we transform WWU into a liberal arts institution that 
specializes in full integration of international practices, principles and values? Or do we 
find less pervasive ways for WWU to distinguish itself as a globally-engaged university? 
 
“Six Questions” Sample Response #2 –  
Western attracts many students who already care about social justice, environmental 
politics, multicultural education, diversity, and global engagement. In 2010, Western 
received the Carnegie Foundation’s Community Engagement Classification, which 
recognized the university’s community outreach efforts. Our alumni ranked first (of 
medium-sized schools) among Peace Corps volunteers in 2013. There are courses and 
programs devoted to social justice in a number of Western’s colleges. Anchoring these 
values to the knowledge and skills that students need to live and work in a globally-
networked environment requires that Western acknowledge and support a curriculum – 
and a campus culture – with a global mandate.  


	Agenda December 11 2014
	001 Call to Order
	002 Executive Session
	003 Approval of Minutes
	003a Draft Minutes_Oct 9 2014
	003b Draft Minutes_Oct 10 2014

	004 Consent Items Motion
	005 Refinancing of Housing & Dining System Revenue Refunding Bonds
	005a Summary of Bond Financing Terms
	005b Res 2014-09 Housing & Dinning System Bond Refinancing

	006 Globally Engaged University

